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he Post Office Trading Fund has continued to improve in its

financial performance for the third consecutive year. With an
operating profit of $215 million, the POTF achieved a rate of return of
6.5% on ANFA in 2015/16. The financial outturn remained upbeat
amidst an increasingly competitive business environment. This
positive outcome is a testimony of the collaborative effort of the entire
team in Hongkong Post, working in concert to secure the longer-term
sustainable development of the Department.

Cost management initiatives were implemented across the
organisation during the year, ranging from rationalisation of the post
office network, review of staff deployment and duty hours in
operational units, commencement of a standard time review for
delivery postmen, to more efficient use of postal vehicles and more
cost-effective procurement of building and vehicles maintenance
services. These initiatives converge on the same underlying objective :
creating value for our customers by making better use of the resources
available to us through postage and postal fee income.

As a government department, Hongkong Post's mission has always
been to serve the community by providing efficient and affordable
postal services of a good quality. We take care not to let profit
considerations determine our corporate agenda, nor allow price
adjustments to be resorted to as a quick fix. By controlling costs, we
have become leaner, more competitive and thus better able to live up
to our promises.

Business development in 2015/16 focussed on tapping the growth
opportunities brought by e-Commerce, in particular cross-border
e-Commerce. In response to customer demands for choice - choice over
price, delivery speed and delivery points, we have introduced new service
options to cater for the diverse postal needs of businesses and individuals.
Examples include additional destinations for e-Express, more relaxed
sorting requirement for Bulk Air Mail, customised delivery service to cater
for different posting needs and the development of iPostal Stations to
facilitate self-service collection of packets and parcels. With an improved
cost structure, there is more scope for service innovation. We have seized
these new opportunities, with a positive outcome.

Value-for-money service provision embraces not just objective
measures of price and service standard. What matters equally, if not
more, is how users feel about the experience of patronising our
service. To further enhance customer experience, our team members
walk the customer journey for a better understanding of users' needs
and aspirations. The insights gained provide a blueprint for targeted
actions in service design. More flexible posting arrangement to suit
mailers' convenience, expanded functionalities of the EC-Ship online
posting platform, online tools for looking up the correct presentation
of local addresses and introducing a user-friendly interface for our
corporate website are a few examples of our effort in adopting a more
empathetic approach in designing our services.

As our transformative process continues, we have looked into areas where
structural changes are called for. The postage restructuring for Local Mail,
Air Mail and Surface Mail which took effect from 1 January 2016 isa case in
point. Postage rates are rationalised to reflect the underlying costs
differences by pegging them to both mail format and weight. The
abolition of unsealed Second Class Mail is a timely move to provide greater
assurance on mail security for online purchases as e-Commerce gains
popularity.



BAETSIRMAFTEFRE T ERRE - PR
BRM  BEFERENTHEFEEZERIE - K
MEEREMEEERREE - S|ERMABEHEEAT
1 - REREBBHEARSINERRE - RAITFL
ARSI NIRE R BRE - EXEEHR - BEZHE

ERHBENZHOKE - RPSRETBEAT LR
& FRRHEEBREES  AWPUTE —BE
X8 RORBOTEER - BAARRHTE-

BEHF  HAERABRBLEESNELLE
ZHEIRSRIFER - € BESNUBRBERALS
DIFENE - AT - RALREHREBHBEKE
ETSHASPER  SHRFHFER Tl
BRARERBORFERYZ - EBBREART
BUFRHESHRENESE - ARMIERBUTIRPIA
7 BHEERTLNER  StHEUNLES
EREBEBNEEERT

AETBBBIFERE - RAREEAFEERKBM
EBPIRF R E ML SR LR R ER B LNER
URABHEBLEESRHEEANEEN - BIEE
BHETHER o EILER - REEE A A hIIEE
BELEBESHNENUBRER  AEHRNEER
EHEREHRE - RAISREIMFINBEHER
AP EEHEREBRRESRANES - ELEBE
HNEEASHREBEEN - RMSHES HE
HEBRBNNFIREEREEEESNERRT
WS —ERTHETHRE WY —EER
NEBRRRERRNRE  TARMBELER
SRV —EAEYSEBREERRNEFEDRE -

T ER G

TEHE
ERERER
ERRBLEESBKE

IHICCEEER
Illll"""‘
1l

o

l|||‘III

j ¢

Business strategies, operational processes and administrative
procedures need to evolve as the market conditions and our own
operating environment continue to develop. We need a robust
corporate governance framework to guide our actions. To ensure that
Hongkong Post can keep up with external developments, it is also
critical that we are able to attract and retain a dedicated, competent
and versatile workforce that views change as a constant, is able to work
across functional boundaries, and sees opportunities in difficulties and
uncertainties. We will continue to invest in our human capital through
professional development in order to nurture a motivated team that is
well-equipped to face the future.

We have made much headway in strengthening the fundamentals of the
POTF during the past few years, as reflected in the continuous
improvement in the POTF's financial performance. It needs to be
recognised, though, that the postal and courier market in Hong Kong is
becoming increasingly competitive as new market players take advantage
of the very low market entry threshold. Bearing the responsibility to
discharge Government's universal service obligation and retaining its
status as a government department, Hongkong Post has to grapple with
various inherent constraints that prevent it from operating and competing
in the same manner as a private sector enterprise.

To build a sustainable future for Hongkong Post, we are exploring with
relevant Bureau/Departments the scope for relaxing some of these
inherent constraints and allowing the POTF a larger measure of flexibility
so that Hongkong Post will be better positioned to deliver the mission
entrusted to it. At the same time, to facilitate a fair and up-to-date
assessment on the POTF's financial performance, we will offer our views
and suggestions to the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau in the
regular review on the target rate of return determined for the POTF in view
of our unique circumstances. These are structural issues that require
focussed attention and coherent deliberation. We will continue to pursue
our case in order to create a more conducive environment for Hongkong
Post to thrive and get a financial target set for the POTF thatis more in tune
with its operating realities.

;-
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Mrs. Jessie TING

Postmaster General
and General Manager of the Post Office Trading Fund
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Purpose, Vision, Mission, Values

Our Purpose - Linking People, Delivering Business

In Linking People, Hongkong Post strives to fulfill our social obligation
to bring people together locally and around the world by delivering
correspondence and merchandise promptly and reliably at affordable
prices.

In Delivering Business, Hongkong Post creates added value for the
economy of Hong Kong by providing business solutions to different
sectors and maintaining the viability of Hongkong Post through
innovative service provision.

- BEBEEER

CEBLEN
iﬁ;ftfgri Commitment
Lrate - EEE
Direction Teamwork
-BALRH
Open Communication
BEERR
§E§t§gﬁ Learning & Growth
Perspectives
BEHREAL
§ftegies World Class People
" - RUBEYA A
Cﬁlgtg* gﬂf G | Management Succession
USIETOTR0aIS e rieuen
Job Competency
CERETERE
Career Development
HBEBTILR
High Morale
- EESHE
Cultural Alignment
-BARHEE
Good Employer
-EHBEEL
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Learning Organisation

Care for Customers from the Heart

-BEBEEER

Care for Colleagues from the Heart

BERE HBRR
Customers Financial
BENER/A HERSEFIREN
Customer Focused Sustained Profitability
Organisation
EEEREE - RAEEBENE
Know the Customers Productivity Enhancement
CRMEEREE - EIEEHIR A
Customer Satisfaction Cost Control
- BN R EREBIBR
Customer Loyalty Business Growth
- BInEBER
Business Expansion
-RERDEE

Loss Minimisation



Our Vision

HFIREE

- RABELARHEHREHE - To be recognised in Hong Kong as an outstanding service organisation
- RAZRARSHMAEBE - To be recognised worldwide as an outstanding postal service
KA Ea Our Mission

BV -XRORD - BERENTEBME

- BZIBEATRE - RUBERBSEFRORE
- S RIFEE - RBRAERUIRERR

- SHEENE - BEBEE

+To be a totally committed and valued workforce

«To achieve consistently the highest levels of customer satisfaction

«To be a viable business with sufficient resources to invest in our future
- To anticipate changes and respond proactively

BMNE= Our Values
EEABEERESESE « To care about our customers and our colleagues
CERAE - BORR - SRR BERE

« To excel through development, teamwork and innovation

elivering Busines i

- EENE - TR L - FEERE
Productivity Proactivity Excellence
- BIERIHT -EBAR - SERE
Innovation Development Anticipation
- B FTE
Value for Money
RERERE
Internal Processes
- BIZRIHT IR - Bofatt AR e - BRBEEEESE VAR
Innovate for the Future World Class Facilities Modern Business Reputable Brand
Management Systems
- ZUEBER - BRI = RATFRE RALERR
Business Diversification Cost-effective & Efficient Process Efficiency Local Corporate Image
- PR A Faciliies AR - REEREE
Strategic Cooperation - TERBERE World Class IT International Postal
. jEaEeELs Safe Workplace CEBEEE Repiutatlon
Long-term Viability Quality Performance Data / -BITHEER

Information

- BREMSHE

Match Competitors

Social Responsibility

- 2EHEBBEEE - BFRREB
Total Quality Management Environmental
Excellence Responsibility
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MIKBA S BAslERE AmEEE
Mr. Patrick A LIN Mr. Lorrience CHOW  Mr. Arthur LAU

BRIZREE
Mr. Danny CHAN

BEmEL L
Mr. Leo YAN

Ms. Kitty AU YEUNG

- THER - Administrative Services - EEBMBBIEERESEE) - Assistant Postmaster General
- EHER - Management Services - WEAWE (Corporate Development)
- RERBRE - Planning and Development - BB CEM R B ARTE) - Departmental Secretary
- B RAGRS - Information System Services - Director (Information
System Services)
- RIEHE » Product Development, - EEBBEEERGEBEE) - Assistant Postmaster General
HERMEE Marketing and Sales - BERERE EEREE) (Business Development)
- SIREIE - Speedpost - Director (Product Development,
- BERE - Customer Relationship Management Marketing and Sales)
- ZS b FER4E + Local Mail
- S HRIEEE + Certification Authority Monitoring
- BERE - Stamps and Philately
- BRRER 4 - International Mail - BEBHEES R (BK) - Assistant Postmaster General
- BRI - Mail Processing - BB (Postal)
- BHIRIE - Mail Distribution - Director (Operations)
- I ER - Retail Business
- EENRE - Productivity Services
- EBERE - Operations Support
- BERS - Customer Service
- HEEE - Cash Management - HAEL(R1E) - Director (Finance)
- BRE{HME - WA - Stamp Supply, Revenue Accounts
e RBBES and PO Box
- B E =t + International Mail Accounts
- BiREBE A4 - Financial Management and Systems
- BT - Financial Analysis
- BEFEEEE - Financial Monitoring
- VIRt pE - Supplies
- BIRRET - International Business T HEL(HINET) - Director (External Affairs)
- RIGE - Terminal Dues
- EIRR YR - International Logistics
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EBFIEESL CORPORATE OVERVIEW
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WA Revenue (B¥E &t HKS million )
—REBENS S TTON

General Mail Services Miscellaneous Revenue

#8%E TOTAL 4,878

4,709 169

Mail Traffic

In 2015/16, HKP processed 1.2 billion mail items (or a daily average of
3.28 million items).

Financial Performance

Hongkong Post's financial performance continued to improve in
2015/16. The total operating expenditure was $4,663 million and the
total operating revenue was $4,878 million, resulting in an operating
profit of $215 million. The rate of return on the average net fixed assets
was 6.5%. The encouraging financial outturn reflected HKP’s persistent
effort in cost management and business development in a highly
competitive market environment, as well as buoyant stamp sales
during the year and favourable accounting adjustments to operating
expenses incurred in previous years.

e —

E/ER N Operating costs (8% B & 7t HK$ million )
BTHA — BB FH

Staff Costs General Mail Operating Expenses Administration Expenses

#%ZE TOTAL 4,663

T ¢EE Mail volume (B E 4 million items)
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Local Mail Traffic

Local mail accounted for 88.4% of HKP’s total mail trafficin 2015/16.

New Developments

New Mail Format Classification

Following the introduction of a mail format classification system (viz.
“Small Letters’, “Large Letters” and “Packets”) on 1 January 2016,
postage rates for local mail items up to 2 kg are determined by weight
and mail format to better reflect the costs of service provision.

Lowering the Minimum Posting Threshold of
Hongkong Post Circular Service

The minimum posting threshold of Hongkong Post Circular Service
(HKPCS) was lowered from 2 000 items to 1 000 items from July 2015 to
cater for the posting needs of small and medium-sized enterprises
(SMEs).

Mechanised Sorting of Mail Bearing

Chinese Addresses

We are building a Chinese character address recognition function in
the Mechanised Letter Sorting Systems in the Central Mail Centre.
Installation work commenced in mid-2015 and the new capability will
be fully commissioned by late 2016.

HONGKONG POST ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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Enhancing Customer Experience
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An online Correct Addressing tool was launched, in July 2015 on the HKP website and in
September 2015 on the HKP Mobile App, for the public to look up the correct presentation of local
mailing addresses so as to facilitate prompt and accurate mail delivery. The tool allows users to
print local addresses on envelopes and labels directly and to store them on mobile devices.
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Revamping the HKP Website
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The revamped HKP website was launched in October 2015. It provides a more user-friendly interface
for customers to access information and services available on the website.

i\ & [ BB —ubil | S5 EE B LIRS
v Linking up MyGovHK Accounts with
HKP’s Online Services

H2015F 1288 mMRAERL [RNBN—UE] IRFEARS  EUEEELETEBBNEF
R (B [®#F5] - [RNBSREE] - [RLB] - [HEFBERBFTRE ] M [45%
) BEERE -

Starting from December 2015, MyGovHK users may access HKP’s e-services, including EC-Ship,
MySpeedPost, StampOnNet, HKPCS and ShopThruPost, more easily with one-stop login.

A - 2R ] f%g’@ Ship ?/S}Jeed Post

Stamp OnNet HREE
ShopThruPost HongkongPost Circular Service
LERED & E R B R

il
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International Mail Traffic

International mail accounted for 11.6% of HKP’s total mail traffic

in2015/16.

BB E 42 International mail volume (B &4 million items)
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New Developments

New Mail Format Classification

2014/15 2015/16

HIRER
Speedpost

With effect from 1 January 2016, postage rates for Air Mail and Surface
Mail up to 2 kg are determined by weight and the new mail format
classification, (viz.”Small Letters”, “Large Letters” and “Packets”).

Extension of e-Express Service
On 16 November 2015, the e-Express
destinations were extended to France,
Germany, Norway, South Korea, Singapore
and Vietnam.

Speedpost as the Official
Express Service Provider

for HKTDC Trade Fairs

Hongkong Post’s Speedpost was appointed
as the official air express service provider for
54 trade fairs organised by the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council (HKTDC) at the
Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition
Centrein 2016 and 2017.

w5 B
ZREAN

FREE DELIVERY.

&A;

HK$1,000

HK$2,500

EEBBERBREMSEERAE R
REBEBRRSBYOETREA
FEIBREARTS

HKP collaborates with the Airport
Authority Hong Kong to provide local
and international delivery solutions for
shoppers at the Hong Kong
International Airport.
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In January 2016, the State Post Bureau, China Post, Macau Post and HKP met in
Zhongshan, China to discuss opportunities for enhanced postal cooperation.

Global Postal Cooperation

International mail constitutes a key part of HKP’s business. We cooperate
closely with postal counterparts worldwide and aspire to stay at the
forefront of the postal industry.

HKP participates in the Universal Postal Union (UPU) as a member of the
China delegation. During the year, we took part in various initiatives and
activities organised by the UPU, including the UPU Postal Operations
Council Meetings, the UPU Council of Administration Meetings and the
UPU World Strategy Conference. HKP is also an active player in the
Asian-Pacific Postal Union (APPU), a regional postal network under the
auspices of the UPU, eg. attendance at the APPU Regional Strategy
Conference and APPU Round Tables on terminal dues matters. In the
multilateral interactions, we exchanged views with our counterparts on
the operational, economic and business aspects of international postal
services. We also engaged in dialogues with our global postal partners on
postal governance issues and postal regulatory policies.

On 18 to 19 June 2015, HKP hosted the Asia Pacific Post (APP) ePacket
Forum in Hong Kong to discuss with regional postal partners the
development of a new ePacket service, an economical shipping solution
with tracking to support e-Commerce. On 14 to 15 September 2015, HKP
attended the first APP CEO Forum in Seoul, Korea, which marked the
launch of the APP ePacket service.

Comprising 9 key postal administrations, the Kahala Posts Group (KPG)
aims to continuously improve the operational performance of EMS and
Air Parcel service among member posts, as well as to explore
opportunities for sharpening product competitiveness. HKP hosted the
annual KPG CEO Meeting in Hong Kong on 29 July 2015. A broad range
of topics concerning operational enhancement and new service
features were discussed at the meeting.

20155 7H29H « WEBBHBEENNREFEESBRTHFRUIBAM2015FMEE -
On 29 July 2015, representatives from nine member posts attended the 2015 KPG CEO
Meeting in Hong Kong.
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Hongkong Post
Supports e-Commerce
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The digital age has transformed the postal industry. The growth of e-Commerce has spawned new service
needs from both mailers and recipients for the conveyance of online purchases domestically and
internationally. HKP is geared up to respond to the customer demand for delivery choice, convenience and
affordable prices.
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Service Innovation
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Delivery Solutions
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ERB] BLFaEE . [HREE| BEAh N EEBBERRTIES -

For tracked delivery locally, HKP offers Local CourierPost, Smart Post and Post Office Counter Collection
Service. Local CourierPost provides full mail tracking, proof of delivery and a guaranteed delivery
pledge. Smart Post provides basic mail tracking and delivery status notification - senders receive
notification by email whereas addressees receive notification by SMS or email. Post Office
Counter Collection Service supports online selling platforms by allowing internet shoppers
to collect their purchases at over 120 post offices throughout the territory.

For international delivery, HKP provides service reliability, transparency and
consistency in service quality from end-to-end for over 200 destinations worldwide.
Speedpost, our premium courier service, provides full-scale mail tracking. Its
competitive and all-inclusive pricing makes it a favourable posting choice,
especially among SMEs. In collaboration with the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council’s “Small Order Zone” online platform, Speedpost

supports local SME merchants to reach out to the global market.

,,,,,,
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s 8E— *?EEZZHE%%E’JEE%&%E]%" [MRTEFREERS | BEBEBBMARBREH - &
AANRRERBEESRE -

HKP’s service offerings also cater for bulk mailers. iMail? is essentially bulk posting of Registered Air Mail
items whereas Bulk Air Mail is an economical solution for sending ordinary Air Mail items in bulk. e-Express
is a tracked service for items up to 2 kg. The delivery network covered 12 key destinations as at end March
2016, with plans for an extension of the destination network. Cool EMS Box, a collaboration between HKP
and Japan Post, provides speedy delivery service for chilled items from Japan to Hong Kong.

ShothmPf)st
43 LEEY —
Online Shopping

[&mB | EWNLBYTE EETBHENER -
PSR - CoRNBAXE -BEERRHEERE
WA RN BT AERZRE LEEFE -

ShopThruPost is an online platform for selling HKP’s
products such as philatelic products and souvenirs as
well as postal stationery. This online selling facility is
also available to local SMEs interested in expanding
their sales channels.

i

ESHBBTRHE
HKP’s e-Cert

ERBREFEERREFTRZENLEEBRETRBZENRE  YARBEES T RETAEK
BLLARREDETRS - EFEE (ARR) KBRS  EHEBHRARVEETNEE -

Hongkong Post’s e-Cert ensures the integrity, confidentiality and non-repudiation of the data
transmitted in electronic transactions. Server e-Cert authenticates websites and builds customer
trust in the cyber world.

"LV *Eﬂﬁﬁggggﬁ HEZ @ship
¥ Enhanced Customer Experience ’

EEBENRALRESFE - [BES ] EE [HBR
HE| ZPMEN [RNSREE] - FEGBLEES
MEBTHE (FIUNERLEFEEMIZES  EERE
X FEHEE) MEEMNFHEAETEERETH
M o 7£2015/16FE » BRPEEREA LMREFEE
HWEFE (HIWE2015F8 A MAGZEHERE »
20155 AMA B EZENRF ~ 201511 B 455

ARBHRTRYE

BUEARBHSARRREHBRRY.

BREHH BEREHBH

HEZRESRSE)  EBEFRBERREENBERE
2016F3A @ [HBER| M [REFS | RISEHE - Wi

HKP’s online posting platforms, EC-Ship and the ——
exclusive “MySpeedpost” for Speedpost customers,

streamline posting preparation (e.g. preparing address labels, completing customs declarations and
calculating postage online, etc.) and help mailers to manage their postings with ease. In 2015/16, we
continued to expand the scope of customers who can access these two platforms for a hassle-free
postal experience (e.g. extension to users of comprehensive deposit accounts (CDA) in August 2015,
users of postal franking machines in September 2015 and users of permit mailing deposit accounts in
November 2015). The range of delivery services covered by EC-Ship was also expanded in March 2016
to include Local Parcel.

ETRERTRT R
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_ RETAIL BUSINESS

HE20165F3831 0 » BB IHILRE 125 IS As at 31 March 2016, HKP operated an extensive network of 125 post

(BE=BRHEHE) r E=EEER - 201556  offices (including three mobile post offices). San Po Kong Post Office was

B SaeBREETEEREARAE U5E reprovisioned and renamed “Concorde Road Post Office” in June 2015,

- = while Ngau Tau Kok Post Office was reprovisioned in March 2016.

jEj rTﬁ%EJﬁ@;FE&%J ) ¢l§ﬁ$ﬁF&%%EiO16$3 Customers of these two post offices enjoy improved service provision after

REE - HimABAREEERABBERHNE the reprovisioning. During the year, On Ting Post Office and Cloud View
TENRE - FA - BRBEFRED - ZEHK Road Post Office were closed in view of diminished service demand.

RAESERBSEEN -

BT E New Developments
I OB AL Integrated Postal Services System (IPSS)

AT Z 55 BIA201596 5 R 2015F 12 B 1 The IPSS was fully commissioned in our counter offices in June 2015
ERRNAYPEE2ERE - BBEE/LIER and in backend offices in December 2015. Through automated counter
=] ui n. =

- e i £ o 1 pg processes and streamlined workflow, the IPSS supports enhanced
REMBILERE - GaBBRES DR customer service and improves operational management as well as

B MSEESEMMEELERE - business development.
AEEREHE
(201641 A1 B ARA %)
FRFEABR0I6F1A 18 LWL Ed &

CRUEAT © CREEHT A BT A

Stk TE e S
Correct Adi
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i PayThruPost
[ER4E4E | IR EHIES M ARFE - 5201643 PayThruPost provides a convenient bill payment option. From March
B [EE0E | WIREEEIER RGeS o 2016, PayThruPost also covers insurance premium payments.

fail]
Philatelic Product

BB E fn PostShop Products
2015F 128 » BRELHEESEW [EFRFE] &6 In December 2015, we introduced an economy line of carton boxes,

FEBZL UREEENEE o 4 BHE “EasyPack”, to meet customer needs. In addition, we continued to
- e EE L RS TR Y open up new sales channels for our postal souvenirs to enhance

,.ai%iﬂft&: SmEARFTNHERE  ReamisH rharket ViSiBilit:

FDD E’stgn

BRI NS SR o

Banner advertising on the external wall of the General Post Office.
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Rationalisation of Postage Structure and
New Mail Format Classifications
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Commencing from 1 January 2016, postage
rates for Local Mail (Letters and Packets), Air
Mail (Letters and Packets) and Surface Mail
(Letters and Packets) are set by reference to

[iRareems e ]
BART ERAGIDRGEX(IE)  SART : 0SEXEEXCOK(RT)

weight and mail format classification, viz e S R
“Small Letters”, “Large Letters” and “Packets”. S R CR % AT BAMSOE
ks e
We mounted an extensive publicity programme to publicise the new et {;mmm:ggmgumﬂ:“ﬁ:;*ﬁgmﬂ
arrangement through electronic and other channels. Letter Format ik i orsawrnaa

Indicators, are available at all post offices for the public to check the fﬁig% y

) . N ) ewspaper advertisement
size of their mail before posting. The postage calculators are

convenient tools for mailers to look up the new postage rates at the

HKP website (www.hongkongpost.hk) and the HKP Mobile App.

e 00000

iTegng
Q f!axm

EBBRENBLETBRTERER

Display of posters and broadcast of videos at post offices and HKP website
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WO BMAEABEZBRBLZFBRBAENEHNBERXDE  URHBAZNRHENZER
I MEEM - URELEERHFIKE

In addition, we have deployed ambassadors to 54 major post offices to disseminate information on the
new mail format classification and to educate the public on the importance of paying sufficient postage
and correct addressing to avoid mail delay.

R RAGBIR

Display of posters at public locations

T
- i

2 I

KINEUEHEER Bt

Letter Format Indicator

1171 — '

= KINEUEHBER
ANEEHBRER Letter Format Indicator

Letter Format Indicator

HONGKONG POST ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

Vo



22 BRREH STAMPS & PHILATELY

e PNE il

STAMPS & PHILATELY

MEFEMEZ Diversified Stamp Themes

1£2015/165FE - E%iﬁﬁ&?ﬁ‘?ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂz_L?A HKP issued nine sets of special stamps and five stamp sheetlets in
iﬁ SNEER - EFFERBEHEEBNTREMEIR 2015/16. The stamp themes reflected different facets of Hong
FRER R BIEM L - R BIBRERM o Kong, the breadth and depth of Chinese arts and culture as well

as topics of international interest.

\
(BAE) £1990F4 4B » EEBFRTHENBHMF o WP
BIBAT [EREEA-—THAF] BR  KSERERERT -

The Basic Law, promulgated on 4 April 1990, is the constitutional document of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR").“The 25th Anniversary
of the Promulgation of the Basic Law” stamps commemorated a milestone date
for the HKSAR.

[BEEAEY ] BERTESEHHERY REEENREES | #L
BREFEERSN A EEEEE -

The six sports depicted in the “Sports in Hong Kong"” stamps topped the results
of an online“My Favourite Sports” voting exercise organised by HKP.

J

[BREME] BENMEANEBE P OMENFRENRE - EEBREEERITRPEBR/PER -

The “Government Vessels” stamps introduced the vessels of six government departments and their services. It was the first
time that HKP issued a vessel-shaped stamp sheetlet.

& J

\

[HEEREERFIENRADIREHEH] BRNERRERADTRESH
WitEReNBENEREXIt -
The “World Heritage in China Series No. 4: Honghe Hani Rice Terraces” stamp sheetlet

featured Honghe Hani’s magnificent terraced landscape and its distinctive Hani
culture.
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[REBRE—FHIREET | BREBEEHUBNBER
SINEEN AR S L ANEURRAENRBNSE -
The “Children Stamps - Chinese and Foreign Folklore”
stamps featured six childhood stories on the theme of
perseverance from around the world in vibrant colours and
attractive graphics.

J

N

[FEARNBEFELTRAFLRS] BRENRBRTSHEBNEES
% EUBANFRESRTS » LEAFHFPHE -
“The 70th Anniversary of the Victory of the Chinese People’s War of Resistance
Against Japanese Aggression” stamp sheetlet depicted the booming prosperity
of Hong Kong today to underline the message that stability and peace do not
come easily and should be cherished.

annng
O ey s
2.9.2015

[RELR | BENARETEEBRIITHRESRS LFERE2015F98
e B BAREESY MR BRE AR NEMEL -
“The Court of Final Appeal” stamp sheetlet marked the relocation of the highest
appellate court in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region from 1 Battery
Path to 8 Jackson Road, the site of the former Supreme Court, in September
2015.

¥

~N

S y [HRIMHA | BEARTOLERMNVE
QO ' R E R it R & BIRFEE o

The design of “World Post Day” stamps

highlighted the global reach of our postal

service.

o8 DS Hong kang, China 20156

X

st Asian International Stamp Exhibition
B+ —EDMEBRRE 2023.11.2015

? ‘2 \‘, e

31st Asian International Stamp Exhibition
g N, BET-EEAEMBRREE 20231205
Ef \

Bua5 19PRUS dWeIS Ly
NS W

£
woill =

zons:

BE 82015 F=1t—EDNERHFREE | BRPERAIE-—FNHORAES  BRPERRTIEZRMNE
ZHRTIHMREBENERNBREY  RRERE [BYHEXR | NWEETRTE -
Echoing the design of the “"HONG KONG 2015 - 31st Asian International Stamp Exhibition Stamp Sheetlet Series No. 1", Stamp

Sheetlet Series No. 2 and No. 3 displayed a multitude of consumer goods and gourmet food in silhouette to highlight the
theme of “Shopping and Dining” of the Exhibition.

J
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wlmr
Vv

~N
Scientists in Ancient China L P— [FELEABER | FERBBEHRERNZ EOEREKH -
: Nw"e;h‘f MERER (R Bz BFBAERY) WEGBRBEU
L /| METRETONBRES -
gv " ’E The “Scientists in Ancient China” stamps showcased the exceptional
%‘:’a | scientific achievements of our nation in ancient times. The names of the
four scientists depicted, i.e. Zhang Heng, Zu Chongzhi, Guo Shoujing

and Li Shizhen, were embedded in micro-text in the illustrations.

The “Year of the Monkey” stamps, together with a gold and silver stamp sheetlet and a silk stamp sheetlet, celebrated the
advent of the Lunar New Year.

[BARE (RF) | BREFESRBFPERNARABR/DIRER - EHRIAEHE -

J
\
a ] R e [BEEZEFHEF | BEEFTEESEZECLAAMHIRER
s u@imgga =3 N—EEZERE - N2 RNBESLZBEELEFLENS
e ® s
%%@:;,?;E" WAL Glioes "§§<: \F“b‘ : The “Centenary of Hong Kong Girl Guides” stamps marked a
: J;: 'Mm ,.“.;“,m = i * milestone occasion of this popular local uniformed group. The
TR o =il stamp perforation of the souvenir sheet featured the emblem of the
Hong Kong Girl Guides Association.
4
\
R TS [EEAHAERE | BR2RANEERENA BT
m EHEA -
The “Public Architecture in Hong Kong” stamps featured
six award-winning government facilities in Hong Kong.
4
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Special Printing Effect

Special printing effects were applied to stamps released during the
year to add interest. Examples included application of 22K gold-plated
lace metal and silver hot foil on the “Gold and Silver Stamp Sheetlet on
Lunar New Year Animals - Ram/Monkey’, glossy vanishing on the
“Public Architecture in Hong Kong” stamps and embossing on the
“World Heritage in China Series No. 4: Honghe Hani Rice Terraces”
stamp sheetlet. For the first time for Hong Kong stamps,
theromochromic ink was applied to the “Sports in Hong Kong” stamps.

Stamps as Customised Gifts

HKP offers a one-stop customised philatelic souvenir service,
using the special stamps issued by HKP as well as customised
Heartwarming Stamps, for corporations and individuals. With an
expanding range of Heartwarming Stamps to cater for different
occasions, service demand has been on the rise.

Promoting Philately
HKP organised a series of activities in 2015/16 to cultivate publicinterestin
stamp-collecting, especially among young people, including:

’

e co-organised philately-related workshops and talks with The Boys
and Girls’ Clubs Association;

e co-organised philately seminars and talks with philatelic societies
during the “HONG KONG 2015 - 31st Asian International Stamp
Exhibition” and organised a youth corner at the Exhibition;

e co-organised the 14th Inter-School Stamp Exhibits Competition
with the Education Bureau;

e enriched and updated the content of the teaching kit for promoting
philately to kindergarten and junior primary students;

e co-organised philatelic workshops with local philatelic societies
to promote stamp-collecting in schools.

Exhibition

"HONG KONG 2015 - 31st Asian International Stamp Exhibition",
organised by the Hong Kong Philatelic Society under the patronage
of the Federation of Inter-Asian Philately (FIAP) and the sponsorship
of HKP, was held at the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition
Centre on 20 to 23 November 2015. To mark the event, two special
stamp sheetlets and a stamp booklet were issued. Precious exhibits
from around the world, including China 1897 Red Revenue Small
One Dollar Block of four and other philatelic gems provided by FIAP
Grand Prix Club, were on display.
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Customer Satisfaction Survey

Customer satisfaction surveys are conducted regularly by HKP to gauge
user feedback. In 2015/16, the overall customer satisfaction level was
96.3%. The satisfaction levels for counter service, delivery service and
hotline service were 95.5%, 97% and 94.2% respectively.

Customer Liaison Groups

HKP taps customer feedback through its Customer Liaison Group,
Business Customer Liaison Group and Philately Liaison Group.
Membership of these liaison groups covers a broad spectrum of the
community, including representatives from District Councils, major
local chambers of commerce and SME associations, account customers,
philatelists and other members of the public.

Through organising regular meetings and visits to HKP's operational
facilities, we obtained useful comments and suggestions on our
products and service quality. The interaction also supports our ongoing
effort in enhancing public understanding of HKP’s operations and its
various areas of business.

PostalPlus for SME

PostalPlus for SME provides an effective communication platform
linking HKP with local SMEs. In collaboration with various SME
associations and Government departments, PostalPlus for SME
supports the business development of local SMEs by organising
trade-specific workshops to introduce HKP’s service solutions (e.g.
e-Commerce solutions that cater for the new 020 trend) and share
useful business information (e.g. various government funding schemes
which support local SMEs in expanding their business). As at 31 March
2016, PostalPlus for SME had over 44 000 members.

BN Secureonine s
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Public Recognition

L ( dle eEXxcellence

HKP received a number of awards in 2015/16 in recognition of our
corporate excellence:

® Category Award (Government Departments) in Next Magazine’s
Top Service Awards 2015;

©"“2015 Best SME's Partner Award” by the Hong Kong General Cham-
ber of Small and Medium Business;

®"“Junzi Corporation Award “ in the Junzi Corporation Survey 2015
organised by the Hang Seng Management College;

o HKP was ranked first in the Hong Kong Government Service Excel-
lence Index 2015 commissioned by the Efficiency Unit. The index
measures the public’s level of satisfaction with public services; and

®HKP was recognised as a "Consumer Caring Company” by GS1
Hong Kong.

(& N

Speeap

The service excellence of HKP's Speedpost service was well recognised
by the following awards in 2015/16:

eThe Gold Level Certification by the UPU Express Mail Service
Cooperative in 2015;

e “The Best SME Partners 2015 - International Courier Service” award
organised by Economic Digest for the ninth consecutive year; and

®The “Excellent Brand of Commercial Express Service” award in the
“Hong Kong Leaders’ Choice 2015" organised by Metro Finance.

Customer Service

HKP places emphasis on upholding customer service excellence in our

workforce. The recognition achieved by our staff in this area speaks for

the service culture in the Department:

® Delivery postman Mr FU Kim-kan's outstanding performance earned
him the Individual Award (Field & Special Service) — Merit Award in the
Customer Service Excellence Award 2015 organised by the Hong
Kong Association for Customer Service Excellence;

® Mr TSANG Ka-wong, delivery postman, received the Best Staff Award
2015 (2nd runner-up) in the Next Magazine’s Top Service Awards
2015; and

e Mr Albert CHIU Yin-lung, an Account Executive of Speedpost, won
“The 47th Distinguished Salesperson Award” organised by The Hong
Kong Management Association.
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Our Team
There were 5 093 civil servants and 1 841 non-civil service contract staff
serving in HKP as at 31 March 2016.

Manpower Development

To meet HKP’s evolving business needs and uphold service excellence,
we equip our workforce with the necessary professional knowledge
and skillset to help them cope with the challenges at the workplace.
The Hongkong Post Staff Training Centre organises vocational training
for our staff, covering different operational functions, product
knowledge, occupational safety and health as well as customer service
skills. To support our staff's career development, professional
development programmes are run to develop their supervisory
capability as well as their management and leadership skills. Classroom
training is supplemented by on-the-job coaching, briefings and
experience-sharing sessions. The total number of training days for our
workforce increased to 44 319 days in 2015/16, compared to 39 432
days in the previous year.

We attach importance to sustaining a culture of honesty and integrity
in the Department through continuous education of our staff. We cover
integrity management in the induction training for all new recruits, and
organise tailor-made seminars and workshops regularly for staff of all
ranks to reinforce an ethical culture. Supervisors and managers share
experience and best practices in staff management, procurement,
contract management and financial management. In addition, we
conduct talks and seminars jointly with the Independent Commission
Against Corruption to raise staff awareness of various issues that
underpin a clean corporate culture, such as supervisory accountability
and procedural propriety.
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Emotional fitness promotes better work performance and healthy
inter-personal relationship in the workforce. To raise our staff’s
awareness in this regard and to build a harmonious team in the
workplace, we organised an Emotional Wellness Workshop for
managers and frontline supervisors in March 2016.

We continue to foster a learning culture in the Department through
the promotion of self-learning and part-time learning among our staff.
Evening English, Putonghua and computer courses are organised. Staff
are also encouraged to make applications to the training sponsorship
scheme. In addition, e-learning programmes on job-related topics are
offered on the HKP intranet for all staff.

Occupational Safety and Health

HKP strives to maintain a safe and healthy work environment in
accordance with the Department’s Occupational Safety and Health
Policy and the Safety Management System. Training on occupational
safety and health is organised for frontline staff and managers. Regular
safety audits are conducted for all operational units to ensure
compliance with regulatory requirements. Through the concerted
effort of our workforce, employee injuries decreased from 219 cases in
2014 to 195 cases in 2015.

Post Office Recreation Club (PORC)

The PORC organises a variety of sport and recreational activities for HKP
staff and their families. In 2015/16, these activities included interest
classes, local tours as well as sports competitions. They were
well-received by our staff and helped foster a team spirit in our
workforce.
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Public Engagement

2015 World Post Day

To celebrate the World Post Day, HKP organised Love Post Day on 9
October 2015 for the 12th consecutive year. We invited members of the
public to send a personal letter for free to a local recipient on that day
to spread the message of love and care. The set of special stamps
released on the same day reminded the public of the important role of
the post in the modern world.

In support of the UPU’s 45th International Letter-Writing Competition,
Hongkong Post and the Education Bureau co-organised a letter-writing
competition for local young people in December 2015, with an
enthusiastic response from students.

Friends of Hongkong Post

Friends of Hongkong Post, a volunteer scheme organised by HKP,
was launched in March 2016 to recruit interested members of the
public to support the Department’s ongoing public education and
philately promotion effort. Initially drawn from retired and existing
staff and students, these Friends act as docents in guided tours and
school visits to HKP’s postal facilities, among other activities.

Corporate Social Respon5|b|l|ty

Preparing Young People for the Workplace

HKP partmpates in various programmes that aim to give young people
a smooth transition from schools or universities to the workplace. In
summer 2015, 12 students took part in the Post-Secondary Student
Summer Internship Programme to gain first-hand work experience in
HKP. We hosted a Job Shadow Day for 15 secondary students in March
2016 under the Job Shadowing Programme organised by Junior
Achievement Hong Kong. In the same month, we participated in the
“Career Explorer - Government Departments” Programme under the
CLAP for Youth @JC project to offer guidance to youths before they join
the job market by introducing to them the postal industry and the
postal operations in HKP.
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In 2015/16, HKP continued to take part in the Social Welfare
Department’s Sunnyway Programme, which provides job attachment
and training opportunities to young people with disabilities.

To show care for the less privileged in the community, HKP staff and
their family members participated in the following activities organised
by our PostCare Club during the year:

® free weekly tutorial classes for children at Caritas Centre;
e visit to the elderly in Lok Fu in June 2015 to distribute rice dumplings;

e providing home painting and decoration service for the elderly living
in Ming Wah Building in Shaukeiwan in November 2015; and

e participating in “Ngong Ping Charity Walk” in January 2016.

During the year, HKP staff also participated in charitable activities
organised by other external bodies, such as the “Corporate and
Employee Contribution Programme”and “Love Teeth Day” organised
by The Community Chest of Hong Kong. We also supported other
charitable organisations by promoting their activities across HKP.

122 post offices under HKP are equipped with barrier free access
facilities. In 2015/16, HKP continued to be recognised as a Caring
Organisation under the programme organised by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service.
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Environmental Responsibility

An advocate for environmental protection and sustainable
development, HKP operates its postal business in an environmentally
responsible manner.

Energy Saving

In 2015/16, Air Mail Centre took part in the Carbon Reduction
Programme of the Hong Kong International Airport. Greenhouse
gas emission of the Air Mail Centre in 2015 was 7% lower than that
in 2014. Following the participation of seven post office premises in
the Energy-Cum-Carbon Audit Programme organised by
Environmental Protection Department (EPD) in November 2014, we
put the audit recommendations into practice to achieve energy
savings in 2015/16.

Recognition

In the GREEN PLUS Award 2015, which was organised by the China
Light & Power to promote energy efficiency, the Central Mail Centre
won the Silver Award under the category of “Public Corporation /
Public Utility / University”. HKP also received the Silver Award in the
Energy Saving Inspector Award.

Green Procurement

In procurement, HKP follows the green specifications promulgated
by EPD. In 2015, our green purchase value accounted for 97 % of the
Department’s total expenditure on products on the green
procurement list promulgated by EPD, compared to 92.7% in 2014.
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Waste Reduction and Recycling

In 2015/16, around 210 tons of wooden pallets used in postings from
bulk mailers were collected from the Central Mail Centre for recycling.
During the year, recycled paper took up 32% of our total paper
consumption, and around 1 300 kg of food waste collected from the
staff canteen in the Central Mail Centre was converted to organic
fertiliser.

Postal Fleet

As at 31 March 2016, HKP’s postal vehicle fleet consisted of 169
environmentally-friendly vehicles, including eight electric vehicles
and 98 vehicles that complied with Euro V emission standards.
Bicycles are used in some rural areas for mail delivery.

Philatelic Products

Environmentally-friendly paper is used for HKP's philatelic products,
including first day covers and souvenir covers. The stamp paper,
made with recyclable pulp approved by the Forest Stewardship
Council, is manufactured by an ISO 14001 certified company.

As at 31 March 2016, over 16 000 local standing order customers and
2 000 overseas mail order customers had registered to make stamp
purchases via our online ordering platform, Stamp OnNet. Up to 25 000
local standing order customers had opted to receive philatelic
newsletters and stamp order collection letters by email. To further
minimise our paper consumption, we will continue to encourage our
customers to switch to electronic communication and transaction.

Participation in Green Campaigns
In 2015/16, HKP participated in a number of campaigns to protect
the environment:

“Hong Kong No Air-Con Night” organised by Green Sense;

“Earth Hour 2016" organised by the World Wide Fund for Nature;
“Woodland Conservation Day 2015” organised by Friends of the Earth (HK);
mobile collection service for waste electrical and electronic equipment; and
@ sustainability-conscious food consumption in official entertainment.

Environmental protection issues are frequently covered in briefings
for our managerial and frontline staff. In addition, we raise green
awareness across our workforce and promote green practices in our
daily operation through articles published in our staff newsletters.
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2015/2016FEEE HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2015/2016

April
BT TEAEEAZ+RAE] AENISIIHE -

A set of special stamps on the theme of “The 25th Anniversary
of the Promulgation of the Basic Law” was issued.

LERBUSMAE - AiRDBBUEAZERBRT
Following the closure of Lok Wah Post Office, a mobile post
office was deployed to serve the local community.

BT [EEREES| AENEHIBE -
A set of special stamps on the theme of “Sports in Hong Kong”
was issued.

May
BITUL A E | BENERHE -

A set of special stamps on the theme of “Government Vessels” was issued.

BT RS &

Government Vessels

June
FERBHEEERREE 5 ERAAHRE -

San Po Kong Post Office was relocated to Concorde Road and
re-named Concorde Road Post Office.

BTV [HPEItHREERTIEME : LLAREHE | ARERN
BEE/NRIGR o

A stamp sheetlet on the theme of “World Heritage in China
Series No. 4: Honghe Hani Rice Terraces” was issued.

Y

Honghe Hani
Rice Terrace:

ERBMBAESTHEN [ENEKTE IS BamE] -
HKP hosted the Asia Pacific Post (APP) ePacket Forum in Hong
Kong.




EEBEEMR (FET) BRFESXROMARNKIZ (BAFAF) -
HKP received Category Award (Government Departments) in Next Magazine's Top Service
Awards 2015.

EEBHESERNECEAHEMRE [2015EH/ N EEREREE | o
HKP received "2015 Best SME's Partner Award" organised by the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Small and Medium Business.

July

[EEBBBEREBEFRYT ] WRELVEFERE 1000 HHEEER -
The minimum posting threshold for the Hongkong Post Circular Service was lowered to 1 000
identical items.

BT [ RERE—FHIREES | HERE
BE o

A set of special stamps on the theme of “Children
Stamps - Chinese and Foreign Folklore” was issued.

i
[
"i

EREIEN 2015 FRASBAKERES -
HKP hosted the 2015 Kahala Posts Group CEO Meeting.

= »_';L_ ——

ERBIMNEHERIBHAIEESTE  AELSKAMIEFMERER -
The online Correct Addressing tool for looking up local addresses was launched on the HKP
website.

August

Z14ERBEERLENMG2EER (8%
BEMm) EYHAEZERHNRERY -

All entries, including the winning entries, in the 14th
Inter-School Stamp Exhibits Competition were on
display at an exhibition held at the Sha Tin Town Hall.
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September

BTN [FRARNMBEFBEANLTRFLR] AENBRPER -
A stamp sheetlet on the theme of “The 70th Anniversary of the Victory of the Chinese People’s
War of Resistance Against Japanese Aggression” was issued.

R«
PEARRE

EERBREHEFE —ERNR A ERKE HE > 8 LEERHTNRAEFEHiFe/ N EE
AR o
HongkongPost attended the 1st APP CEO Forum, at which APP ePacket was launched.

The Ist Asia Pacific Post CEO Forum

14-15, September 2015

BT [REAR ] HENBRPERK -

A stamp sheetlet on the theme of “The Court of Final Appeal” was issued.

9.2015 L)

VAV TYNITH0}

B HOWU KO
30.9_2015

EBRBRRBEARNEL EEEIE RS TH o

The online Correct Addressing tool was launched on the HKP mobile app.

BERBBISREEERE (RE—F) [FINEHREEREBHE2015 - BRRERE | 2o
HKP's Speedpost service won "The Best SME Partners 2015 -International Courier Service"
organised by Economic Digest.



” ® October
 BTLL (R | BEASRIEHE -

k A set of special stamps on the theme of “World Post Day” was issued.

P

‘ A
- HONG KONG

WorldPost Day
R HERE

9.10.20\°

4
<

BREINE 12 F8) [EHEERA

“Love Post Day” was held for the twelfth year.

&
<

HEHEHE BB NHESERR -

® HKP’s corporate website was revamped with a more user-friendly interface.

® November
[SMIE | RISEREEE - &6 - #E - 8% - FHANME o

e-Express service was extended to France, Germany, Norway, South Korea, Singapore and Vietnam.

<&
<

Y [&82015-%=+—RE2NERBREE | HEBHES T - SEBREY - HEEH
BEREH Fﬁé‘ [B82015—FB=1T—ERNEBRBERE | HFE/NIRRAHE_HKM
M‘—:’i 1 J’)\& iﬂmlj\ﬂzﬂ% 2

“HONG KONG 2015 - 31st Asian International Stamp Exhibition”, organised by Hong Kong Philatelic
Society under the sponsorship of HKP, was held. During the exhibition, the “"HONG KONG 2015 - 31st
Asian International Stamp Exhibition” Stamp Sheetlets No. 2 and 3 and a stamp booklet were issued.

— I 52 7 Bl B B 5

ian Infernational Stamp E>

RS

Opening Ce| "
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A& . % December

Y RELEEETER2016F [HRAMKA | BRNFESEEREERTFLE - BBIMEEH
BEREHA BV FEERIFLLE -

HKP and the Education Bureau co-organised a letter-writing competition for young people inHong Kong, in
support of the UPU’s 45th International Letter-Writing Competition for the World Post Day in 2016.

A N

"3

BATU [HEEANER] BENEHIBE -

A set of special stamps on the theme of “Scientists in Ancient China” was issued.

q:

2] ast B D= I:P

& o%|B 8B TN
= e =52 N[
/A = |2 &=/ &
. BEFHENEIT
7% &P il ® |EF
PR T 3 B 8122015
i St iK%

Sthighd

kml!w 3 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

Y EANBESBERRFENHERES [BiodzE] -
& HKP was recognised as "Consumer Caring Company” by GS1 Hong Kong.

® January

r 12016 F1 A1 BB EETHEBMATHNIHGNBERSGESMESX (BNEGEH -
REEH - BB) 5TE - RibBH - ZHEHEMTEHBENEEZHENRE ARE

Starting from 1 January 2016, postage for letters and packets not exceeding 2 kg is calculated by
reference to item weight and mail format (viz. Small Letter, Large Letter and Packet). The adjusted
principal postage rates for Local Mail, Air Mail and Surface Mail took effect from the same date.

&

Y XEBHENESENHEERE -
On Ting Post Office and Cloud View Road Post Office were closed.

Y BITU [BRRERMRF)] BENSHEER -

A set of special stamps to celebrate the “Year of the Monkey” was issued.
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BERBHRHEDNAEFBESHFEAEEZSSEER  NEEBREBNFNERE -
HKP attended a meeting of the APP Cooperative Management Board to strengthen cooperation with
regional postal partners.

EEEEESEENRN [2015FEBFLERE ] b BEHBERE [EFhxE] -
In the Junzi Corporation Survey 2015 organised by Hang Sang Management College, HKP received
the Junzi Corporation Award.

® February
Y #E (BHERH) (F98AE) THMHTHEA - 2016625 1HEM °

Revision of miscellaneous postal fees and charges under the Post Office Regulations (Cap. 98A)
took effect from 1 February 2016.

A set of commemorative stamps on the theme of
“Centenary of Hong Kong Girl Guides” was issued.

= K @Q (i)
Y BT [BELEEEAT] BENLSHE . 21t =X ]F
= " NRREH EF

Q&B"'@L’& g Qk—i
e N 7 J @ |
¢ A &< B

® March
¢ EEHBEY [F8BB2K] T8 -

HKP launched a volunteer scheme, Friends of Hongkong Post.

y BITU [EBAHEE| BENBRIEE -

A set of special stamps on the theme of “Public Architecture in Hong Kong” was issued.

203 < na s

PUBLIC ARCHITECTURE
HONG KONG

IN HONS AEMEE DLOCND BY COUN TalNA
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ERMEH® PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

B PR BB SR 75

International Mail Business

- ZEEREEMSHNREE .- Air/Surface Letter and Packet

- EEIFERERE - Air/Surface Parcel
- ZEERSEER SR B « Air/Surface Registered Mail
[ HIREIE | - Speedpost
[ ZHRIE ] . e-Express
- RERFZEH - Bulk Air Mail
[ Z4% ] - iMail®
SR HE SHR - Cross-border Direct Mail
- BIFRER T - International Periodicals

P %55

Retail Business

[ Ep4%3E | » PayThruPost
- EZR - Remittance Service
- BSEEIRTS + Counter Collection Service
- IREFPRAE + Trade Declaration Service
- BREYERZS - Registration Service for
R the Road Cargo System
[EpHEEE | ES - PostShop Products
- BEERE » Advertising Service

EBHBFR 2015/2016
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e-Services
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. SRR

Local Mail Business

» Local Letter and Packet
+ Local Parcel

» Local Registered Mail

« Local CourierPost

» Smart Post

« Local Periodicals

» Hongkong Post Circular

Service

« ShopThruPost
- DMDIY.hk

« e-Cert

« “Make My Card”

Personalised Service

« Issue of Definitive, Special

and Commemorative
Stamps

« Local Standing Order

Service and Overseas Mail
Order Service

« Heartwarming Stamps

Customised Service

« Customised Gifts Service
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In pursuit of our mission of “Linking People, Delivering Business”, we
will continue to upgrade our operational performance, enrich our
service offerings and enhance customer experience.

Operational Excellence through Wider Use of
Information Technology

To ensure value-for-money in service provision, we will invest in
wider use of information technology to automate our work
processes and strengthen operational management. The key IT
projects now under implementation include :

Mail Flow Management and Tracking System

Taking the opportunity to redevelop the Track and Trace System
soon to be retired, we will introduce enhanced functionalities for
tracking mail items and mail despatches throughout the mailflow.
The new system will be fully commissioned in March 2017.

Replacement of Personal Digital Assistants (PDAs) for use by
delivery postmen

The PDA currently used by delivery postmen is due for replacement
in 2017. We are examining the upgrading options (e.g. incorporating
an e-signature function) in order to further enhance operational
efficiency.

Installation of Global Positioning System (GPS) on Postal and

Hired Vehicles

We have installed GPS devices on our departmental postal vehicles
for Speedpost operations in early 2016. Subject to a review on its
effectiveness, we will consider more extensive use of the facility on
all departmental and hired vehicle fleet.

Service Innovation to Support e-Commerce

To enhance convenience to customers and to offer more delivery
options, we introduced self-service collection kiosks called iPostal
Stations, supported by the roll-out of the Mail Collection Number
initiative, in May 2016. The service allows a choice between post
office counter collection and locker collection for items normally
requiring door delivery.

el




AOAEE (LHEREER) RUESKSYRRE To provide integrated logistics services to local enterprises, especially
RAPHEEYR B AN LA 1E - IR EEFERE « m 8t - retailers, we will engage fulfilment service providers and offer a more

TE LT TR S HCERE TR o comprehensive service package that embraces pickup, packing,
temporary storage, posting preparation and delivery.

SRR IR HEEIEN RS ,

J%ED }Ej;inﬁ%m%j‘?, ... Enhanced Customer Convenience

(%% 5 ] H#\E iE‘\EijJ B (PIBEERERF®R e will introduce additional functions (e.g. pre-posting tracking) to
BB RELERER) » SBEERSE - KX EC-Ship so as to further enhance customer convenience. More

HEFER [REZ ] NAERFTEFNWEE » &5 streamlined mail acceptance arrangements for bulk mailers using
EEENRET L - EC-Ship are under development.
EEMHARKE Reprovisioning of the General Post Office (GPO)

BMAEARSESRAROER Y ugas OUldng D
i g U e are taking forward the reprovisioning of the uilding in
IR¥ITEE — Tt ¥ é IE 2 . .
RASAR =R RS steps with the Government’s development plan for Site 3 on the
BMstESEERE (BBERENMFAMEBE  new Central harbourfront.
=R BRARIGERMN [HREE ] EF4E) We plan to reprovision the district-tied facilities (i.e. the GPO
EE=ZFABBEEUREEANBBREEEZ ' M Counter Office and the Post Office Box Section, the GPO Delivery
EEIMAIRBEENEEDREGF D OEREE  Office, and the Speedpost Operations Section), within Site 3 to meet
B EE o the postal needs of the local community, and HKP's Headquarters to
a vacant government site adjacent to the Central Mail Centre in
Kowloon Bay.
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52 A& OUR PLEDGE

Hﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘(ﬁ?& B 2015/16 POSETAGE  2016/17

B =HA BiR
Performance Pledge » Target  Pefomance [IREN

3 ] Bl E 5 Local and International Mail

1. 20— R"FEA-—FEZO-—R"FHEA=+—RHA:
"From 1.4.2016 to 31.5.2016 :

FREFEERBREARREFET —EIERREWRSFA 99.0%
Deliver locally posted ordinary and registered letters to local addressees by the following working day
—O—AR"ERA—BE=-O—tHE=A=+—HHH: 99.0% 99.7%
From 1.6.2016 to 31.3.2017:
PEEH iR EFEBERBRNEEHRRFTET —ETERRERE A 99.0%
Small Letters : Deliver locally posted ordinary and registered Small Letters to local

addressees by the following working day
REEHRBE IHARTE B RS AR EHREBEMNR T EME TERATRERA 99.0%

Large Letters and Packets:  Deliver locally posted ordinary and registered Large Letters and Packets
to local addressees within 2 working days

2.1 R B AR R IR RS B P S AR R 99.5% 100% 99.5%

iDeliver Bulk Economy mail items according to the standards specified in the Service Leaflet

3. BB IBUE R T EF AR AT 4 R PLE TAE R RIRE WA A 99.5% 100% 99.5%

Deliver Hongkong Post Circular items within 4 working days

4. O R B 2 BE A A BB AT IR - BV R AT AR5 MR B S B A B
WiZ=NE - BRERFEEMIL
iDespatch outward ordinary and registered airmail items, posted before the advertised latest time
for posting, to the designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights

ZO—RFEMNA—HEZO—AR"FHEA=+—HHH: 99.0% 99.9% 99.0%
From 1.4.2016 to 31.5.2016 :
FEEIER Y REEART—EIAFEX

Non-peak periods ¥ Within the same day or the following working day
ZO—REARA-HEZO—tHF=A=1+—-HHH:
From 1.6.2016 to 31.3.2017:

SEDIEHE] v PRUEH REEHHT —EIHEX 99.0%
Non-peak periods ¥ Small Letters: Within the same day or the following working day
REEHRBE REEMETERA 99.0%
Large Letters and Packets:  Within 2 working days following the day of posting
Bl v RS REUSHREE : REBRNEIFERR 90.0% 100% 90.0%
Peak periods ¥ Small Letters, Within 4 working days following the day

Large Letters and Packets : of posting

5. A AZ BEAIEBEWETERRIRERMS A 99.0% 100% 99.0%

Deliver inward airmail items within 2 working days after arrival in Hong Kong

6. AR ADBERRTAMEBEMETFRAANIRERES NERNABTETITHEENRM | 99.5% 100% 99.5%
A EfiERIA =@ TERANIRE
Deliver local and inward parcels within 2 working days after day of posting or arrival, to Hong Kong,
Kowloon and major commercial and industrial areas in the New Territories, and within 3 working days
to other areas

7. HOZBERNPEHEEARE  DARUTHAMREEXZEERBMMOMEQT
BERFEEMU
Despatch outward air parcels, posted before the advertised latest time for posting, to the designated
air carrier, subject to availability of flights

e 3 METERRA 99.0% 99.9% 99.0%
Non-peak periods ¥ Within 2 working days
S1-3- HETEXRA 90.0% 100% 90.0%
Peak periods Within 5 working days

EBHBFR 2015/2016
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Performance Pledge

8. HOXRERFEHEHBHMNETRFEFRET  BARUTHAIKBIEZXZEEREMIIN
fZEQE - BRARFESMIL
Despatch outward bulk air mail items, posted before the advertised latest time for posting, to the
designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights
B 3 =EITERR
Non-peak periods ¥ Within 3 working days
BlgH v CETERR
Peak periods " Within 7 working days

2015/16

BHE

Target

90.0%

90.0%

2015/16

e
Perfomance

100%

100%

2016/17

BE
Target

90.0%

90.0%

BIREIE R A BB ERIE Speedpost and Local CourierPost

9. HFREIE L PIULF BR S 1R AR5 R BT 2 P AR E R o SR ML
Provide pick-up service for Speedpost items within the period as specified in the Service Information Sheet

99.5%

100%

99.5%

10. O REIEES N NMEEBERREANKRE - IRRTFERLREMZ AR - BARTFEEMIL
Deliver outward Speedpost items accepted before the specified latest times for posting to air
carriers on the same day, subject to availability of flights

99.5%

99.8%

99.5%

11 AD B REEF R EFARKAKE - ATRE—ETHEXAIRERTA

Deliver inward Speedpost items on the same working day for items arriving before 6:00am

99.5%

99.6%

99.5%

12, Z:4th T AR 3 TR 32 AR A% R FE P 5 IR 2 RO

Deliver Local CourierPost items according to the standards specified in the Service Leaflet

99.5%

99.9%

99.5%

K1 R# Retail Business
13. FEILHFEABEZ UE10D EREIRERE

Serve customers within 10 minutes during non-peak hours

98.0%

99.6%

98.0%

14, BITR /SR HY BER R 1E25 7 8 AR H IR

Serve customers within 25 minutes during peak hours or periods i

98.0%

99.9%

98.0%

15. BUARLAHEZ BN TERN 150 BRATR

Reset private franking machines at counters within 15 minutes

98.0%

100%

98.0%

16. {7 Kk 3% BB B fn 7] BB AR % AT e] B M i) THER 150 88 A STk

Deliver products under the Local Standing Order Service at counters within 15 minutes

98.0%

100%

98.0%

SR EBEEM Philately & PostShop Products
17. BEERERIHRETE A EIER BT BRETBNER

Make products available for collection under the Local Standing Order Service on the first day of
issue of the related special stamps

100%

100%

100%

18. R EB/N BB R B AR A E TERARN T HT BB SR

Despatch overseas orders within 5 working days from date of receiving the order

100%

100%

100%

19. R ERFE BB ANETERANZFREBIRE W FE

Open new philatelic accounts within 6 working days from date of receiving the application

100%

100%

100%

20. R B A RS T BRI @ AR A R N B TAER M IBFTRT B f R E WA A

Deliver local orders for PostShop products within 6 working days from date of receiving the order

99.0%

100%

99.0%

HONGKONG POST ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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54 A% OUR PLEDGE

ARG A GE

Performance Pledge

E 7T &E IR Certification Authority
21

BFHEE EA)
e-Cert (Personal)
BFEE (R

e-Cert (Encipherment)

=X

3 days
X
10 days

ETIHEE LFRAHZ A ME BRI E F RS RPRE:
Process applications for Hongkong Post e-Cert within the working days stipulated below :
BEFHEE W8
e-Cert (Organisational)
- BFES (AR

e-Cert (Server)

2015/16
BiE

PAESTAICE 2016/17

53] BiE
Performance EEIfe[=)S

Target

99.0% 100% 99.0%

+x
10 days

=X
10 days

SR Hotlines
22. BB CEHN 1 2MNEERIRES

Answer calls to Hongkong Post Hotlines within 3 rings, i.e within 12 seconds

90.0% 99.0% 90.0%

IR IS E BRI RV ER 55 Application for Postal Services

23. HRETIFRAMEZ TIIREHREE:

Process applications for the following services within 5 working days :

- B (E4E
Post Office Boxes
- ERALARESNE

Use of Private Franking Machine

- ARKRERFEMARERS

Opening of Deposit Accounts for posting of mail in bulk

- B EEART

Redirection Service

FEMETIERAMEZ TIIRFEH R

Process applications for the following services within 4 working days :

- B R LIRS

Freepost

- BRLIEIRT

Business Reply Service

- BB P 2 Bl =R AR T

International Business Reply Service

100% 100% 100%

24, —ETERAMZEEBECEREF RBHHH

Process applications for Hongkong Post Circular Service by the following working day

100% 100% 100%

25. —ETER A ZFEF ERAR TS AR ER

Process applications for Permit Mailing Service by the following working day

99.0% 100% 99.0%

=

i. 2015/16 FEZRBEH  FHREFEHFNEFTET —EIEXREREA

ii. 2015/165F E 2RI AH : EERBHFR=BIERRIRERHEA ©

iii.2015/16 5 F 2 fR G4 © O 2 MBANE IR RIATIRE » BAT AU T AT
SRS RIEXEETHEMIINMELT  BARTEEMIE -
FERY  REEART—EIEX - 5% AEIFERRK -

iv.IESEH : CO—XR"FOAZETAR=ZO—+tF=A -

v. BIgH  —O—A"E+—HAZE=O—tF=H -

Vi SR HIEEEBRRITER THURIT A FTNERGNREHF - BUTIRE
HREEHERE-AURDEA - AN+ ANRE—EEY) - SBHEA
EEAH SIS RIS o

EBHBFR 2015/2016

Notes:

i

<

s

Performance Pledge for 2015/16: Deliver locally posted letters to local addressees by
the following working day.

. Performance Pledge for 2015/16: Deliver Bulk Economy letters to addressees within 3 working days.
i. Performance Pledge for 2015/16: Despatch outward airmail items, posted before the

advertised latest time for posting, to the designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights.
Non-peak periods: within the same day or the following working day.

Peak periods: within 5 working days.

Non-peak periods: April - October 2016 and March 2017.

Peak periods: November 2016 - February 2017.

i. Peak periods include the first day of issue of philatelic products, seasonal pressure periods

such as Christmas, Lunar New Year and the peak collection periods for government bills

(i.e. the whole month of January and the last week of April, July and October). Details of
peak hours for individual post offices are displayed in the public halls of the post office concerned.
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Qé FEHBH KEY FIGURES
R

HHBEEES Post Office Trading Fund

(a) BIEEERHRE

(b) A (ABEETET)

(c) X (LAEEBTE)

d) EEBF AE&EBT)

(e) B2 (LLBEBHED)

(f) BEEEERE AEEBT)
Q) £ESD (BASNKEENEE)
(h) BRIER A (BT)

(i) BEAZ

Rate of return on Fixed Assets
Revenue (HK$ million)

Expenditure (HKS million)

Profit from operations (HK$ million)
Traffic (Million items)

Capital Investment (HKS million)
Productivity (item per man-hour)
Unit handling cost (HK$)

Total number of staff

2016

=’

Performance

6.5%

4,878

4,663

215

1,197

102

139

1.98

6,934

2015
=B

Performance

4.9%
5,344
5175

169
1,212
364
137
1.97

7,032

EBHBFR 2015/2016



FiIFEER#BE REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

B BLEES Post Office Trading Fund

B 545 BT BB B
= i '

By ETERE

B EE
LRPAERCELRE I HNEOEEBHE L
EBETHHMBRE  ZENBRREIEN20165F3
AMBENMBRRREBEZZE LFENZE RS
xR EHEZPRNBESRER  URFTESHEE
BERE MM ERREER -

NBBEEHESHLERIMBERR
ERENEE
BRELBESOCEEEERE (EBELK
By (B430E)B7(4)KER BB SRS B RE
HEMTSNNERE REEERAKENR
iR - BB R R B SR R
WB S A SRR o

ELTERVEE

ENEERBREENBTHZEVBRRFLE
R BZERR (BEEZKA) F7(6)RREAE
MR EREITE - ELEERBREBTER
g WRIRATES  USEBEVBRE
RENFEEME KRR

Audit Commission

The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report

To the Legislative Council

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of
the Post Office Trading Fund set out on pages 59 to 85, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund's
Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund is responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430)
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as the General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section
7(5) of the Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission
auditing standards. Those standards require that | comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

HONGKONG POST ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016



EFFEERWSE REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

FHEBEEESE Post Office Trading Fund

B RMTRFAENE AN BRI EER
BREERNETRR - MRENEFBURNETE
B FE - BFEFHE R EFFRERMER I B IRE
FREEARBRRANER - £ EZSERE  F
#Em%liﬁﬁﬁigéiﬁﬁaﬁ'ﬁ*a MR AR
HAERES - IREHEEBNERSF - B FHY
Eﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬂﬁ%?ﬁ%%% o Faf MEHEE
BHRELEESHKEMRANSRENSEML
REEHEF A NS EY - URFFEMBEER
HYERBHIEHRS = -

BHRE BRESHNETREERAENEZ AR
HET R RIRAERE

BR

AR REYBBRRCRREBYBREENE
BEMREitRREBRELEESN201653831H
HARRRBEZALFENEERNRRRERE
WERR (EEEESHRA) BT@RFIBRENTRZ
R -

\
7

%ﬂ

EBHEER
(BEHEEERZIFHNLT)
2016FE9829H

BB

EHHT
TSR
ABEH AL 2612

EBHBFR 2015/2016

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the General Manager,
Post Office Trading Fund, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Post Office Trading Fund as at 31 March 2016, and
of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the manner provided in
section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance.

Ny

LAU Sun-wo

Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

29 September 2016

Audit Commission
26th Floor
Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong



2mk#ExR STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 5 g

#%2016%3H31H LLE[E for the year ended 31 March 2016
(LAB¥F T25U7R Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B BLEES Post Office Trading Fund

FiaE
’ 2015

Note
e Turnover 3 4,878,596 5,343,894
BIERAS Operating costs 4 (4,663,390) (5,175,148)
BIEER Profit from operations 215,206 168,746
HA Other income 5 137,892 106,244
EBEAESHAEF Profit before notional profits tax 353,098 274,990
BEAEH Notional profits tax 6 (60,412) (49,756)
FEREF Profit for the year 292,686 2257234
Hih 2wk Other comprehensive income = -
FEHAZEMBG Total comprehensive income for the year 292,686 225,234
EEEERRE Rate of return on fixed assets 7 6.5% 4.9%

$£63E85E MIMIEEBABIERAN—2FSD The notes on pages 63 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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M#BiRIER STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

201653 H31H as at 31 March 2016

(LAB¥EF T25U7R Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

R EBEEES Post Office Trading Fund

FiEE
2015
Note
3F5ﬁ§ff§? Non-current assets
Y -~ SRAERERM Property, plant and equipment 8 2,609,568 2,651,754
B ERE Intangible assets 9 54,681 42,587
BEHRNES Held-to-maturity securities 10 201,649 467,083
INEEESTFER Placement with the Exchange Fund 11 2,350,183 2,227,662
5,216,081 5,389,086
MENEE Current assets
FE Stocks 6,562 6,302
FEURIRER - & R FEFIE  Debtors, deposits and prepayments 251,820 245,484
FEURERE A TIRFR Amounts due from related parties 19 18,336 17,500
EUWINEESERFIE Interest receivable from placement with the Exchange Fund 19,336 30,211
BEZEHmNEs Held-to-maturity securities 10 582,279 319,094
RITIERR Bank deposits 520,345 702,442
e RIBITEER Cash and bank balances 147,953 151,743
1,546,631 1,472,776
i N=K Current liabilities
BERFENFE Deposits and receipts in advance (250,670) (273,903)
FEIIRF R FESTE A Creditors and accruals (624,452) (826,878)
EEEFIEE Provision for employee benefits 13 (92,137) (86,279)
FE(SEEE A TIRFR Amounts due to related parties 19 (449,803) (438,781)
EAEEFEH Notional profits tax payable (46,263) (54,360)
(1,463,325) (1,680,201)
TENEE / (BE) BME Net current assets / (liabilities) 83,306 (207,425)
BEERERBER Total assets less current liabilities 5,299,387 5,181,661
ERENBE Non-current liabilities
IEFERL R Deferred tax 12 (39,663) (35,718)
EERFIEE Provision for employee benefits 13 (490,983) (498,649)
(530,646) (534,367)
BEFE NET ASSETS 4,768,741 4,647,294
BARR G CAPITAL AND RESERVES
EEESER Trading fund capital 14 2,495,059 2,495,059
BRF R Development reserve 15 243,664 243,664
REEF Retained earnings 16 2,030,018 1,908,571
4,768,741 4,647,294
P
VS
TERGZT Mrs. Jessie Ting
HHEEEESAKE General Manager,
2016F9 A 29H Post Office Trading Fund

SE63EB5H MR HIREKM

EBHBFR 2015/2016

ok
)

29 September 2016

The notes on pages 63 to 85 form part of these financial statements.



#%2016%3H31H LLF[E for the year ended at 31 March 2016
(LAB¥EF TAL5I7R Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

MHBLEES Post Office Trading Fund

LB gz STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY é']l

FAEER
FEAZHNE
FREMRE
FRAERR

Balance at beginning of year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend paid during the year

Balance at end of year

2015

4,647,294 4,422,060
292,686 225,234
(171,239) -
4,768,741 4,647,294

5563 EB5H MV MEE R A IEIRKRA —2B D ©

The notes on pages 63 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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;{% ;s REMER STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#1£2016%3H31H LLF[E for the year ended 31 March 2016
(LAB¥F T25U7R Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HWBEEES Post Office Trading Fund

gz
2015
Note
EEEENRERE Cash flows from operating activities
BIEER Profit from operations 215,206 168,746
W RERBMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 117,271 145,468
B EEHE Amortisation of intangible assets 9,337 9,622
HE BV  REBER Loss on disposal of property, plant and
BEMEE equipment 3,069 2,653
ST ESIFHAKRER Unrealised foreign exchange loss on
& S EE financial instruments 6,363 27
EERAEBERD Decrease in provision for employee benefits (1,808) (6,529)
SRR RIS Decrease in creditors and deposits (228,014) (119,149)
FERTRRE A LIRX Increase / (Decrease) in amounts due to
2/ 0L related parties 27,845 (124,246)
VR R ZE L Increase in debtors and stocks (3,577) (43,370)
FEUREFE A LIRFR (Increase) / Decrease in amounts due from
() 1 WA related parties (836) 5,866
S ERFIEH Notional profits tax paid (64,564) .
RELEEENESFHE Net cash from operating activities 80,292 39,088
REEANRERE Cash flows from investing activities
REHREB3MEAR Decrease in bank deposits with original maturity
IRITEIRL over three months 625 316,375
BARBZHRIES Purchase of held-to-maturity securities (323,559) (530,908)
EESZ MRS Redemption of held-to-maturity securities 321,679 208,498
INEESTFFIE N Increase in placement with the Exchange Fund (122,521) (850,295)
BB - SREBNEEMA  Purchase of property, plant and equipment and
B ERE intangible assets (114,385) (87,279)
HEME - BER Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
M equipment 333 475
BWRFE Interest received 143,513 90,681
REREEBNREFE Net cash used in investing activities (94,315) (852,453)
RIEEANRERE Cash flows from financing activity
SRR Dividend paid (171,239) -
FERIETE B HIREF5 Net cash used in financing activity (171,239) -
ReRZERRESMDFE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (185,262) (813,365)
FONRERERRS Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 853,560 1,666,925
FHRNRERERRE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 668,298 853,560

SE63EB5EMMIEERA M IBHRERAN —ED °

EBHBFR 2015/2016

The notes on pages 63 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

MmN NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WBEEES Post Office Trading Fund

1. —fRER
BINERE1995F 7B 190 RIE (B EESF
) (55430F) 3 - ARGIEBIBRE - 1£1995
FATHRIUBHBLEERS (EEHES) o

SEASHNTEERRREH—REBNMIHIRE -
IWAE20005F1 A R AR AL EHEER - RHIHE
RER - H2007F4 /8 - EFARRBEE
EETEENAMRERY -

2. FESFEER
(a) FFL2ERIE

APHHBRREREBARBNSHRAKA
BERNEBYHREER (WFARERRE
ETREEEEEMASEANAEERN
BRI EBIMBEREEL - FREHEARR
B) R g EESRANEIESHTBER
T o

(b) REE AR AV ERE

BREUTEABRAIRZ AENERTA
RUAFESRS NP BRERNERER
URERAETE

RANEETBMBHRELNNYHERREFR
EEBFELHE - AT RERR - ZEHE
A RBREFESTBERNER - URE
EREENWAEX HIN2MAE - 2FHh
R ERENERR - HERAEERRAMER

BEMBREBEAHSEZ  AERALERL
ARBRERHAGEREERABNIREE
HVERE o (AT ERNEBREERFTE -

General

The Post Office Trading Fund (POTF) was established on 1 August
1995 under the Legislative Council Resolution passed on 19 July
1995 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance
(Cap. 430).

The principal activities of the POTF are provision of general postal and
ancillary services, and electronic authentication services after the POTF
became a Recognised Certification Authority in January 2000. With
effect from April 2007, electronic authentication services are provided
through a contractor under the supervision of the POTF.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), a
collective term which includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the POTF is set out below.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is historical cost except that trading financial
instruments are stated at their fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

HONGKONG POST ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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L[ HBEmEHE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRAFRIGERASN - SRRLUBB T LB

Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

HWBEEES Post Office Trading Fund

2. TEEHBE @) Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) I SRR IOERE (&)

ZE G RBABRREWTERER - W

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an

BRI RFEAEHE  SEFHETNER
R BMFERY R ARRNSEH - BB
BRI RS Z B R AR ENER

EEESHERSTTRELEHIL TS REMT
BRNEETHE o EREAREHHNERR
AR S AR B AR R R T A FE A T A
BEZE BETEURBREARR SHEE
M EEAVIRE SRR RF RIRER] ©

(c) ¥% ~ RiRAEM

R1995F8 1R BRBEEESHYE R
BREN  RONRAERRBERAL
ERBEBRYEEESHIRET NG
BEAK - B1995F8 1B EBENYE -
RERBEMIRABERERERAX
N -

AT BIRM% ~ SRR UBAMEHIBRR
sHTEREMRESEIR ()

- ARMEREN T HRUNRE ENE R
BT

-BReERSNEMARET - BFHEN
THARBIFEEE ) UK

- RN BREEEREE - RIS
AEREEES o

EBHBFR 2015/2016

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of the POTF's accounting policies. There are also no
key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the POTF on 1
August 1995 were measured initially at deemed cost equal to the
value contained in the Resolution of the Legislative Council for
the setting up of the POTF. Property, plant and equipment
acquired since 1 August 1995 are capitalised at the actual cost of
acquisition or installation.

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
(note 2(e)):

- land classified as held under a finance lease and buildings held

for own use situated thereon;

- other buildings held for own use appropriated to the POTF. The
land is regarded as a non-depreciating asset; and

- plant and equipment, including furniture and fittings, plant and
machinery, motor vehicles and computer systems.



MmN NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &‘ ’5

(BRAFRIGERASN - SRRLUBB T LB

Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

HWBEEES Post Office Trading Fund

2. FESHBE @) Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) % - iR (&)

(c) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

MERERE  RERBMOMEE LR
FH - EREAEMGERIEGE  BUERES
$HIEE M RAE - BN ERFEHRNT ¢

- W ABMEEE BRISEEFHHE
Y £ dth

-UREET R RRSEEFHERMG
B¥ s AE R F W E F

MNEEEE

- Hipg s 20 - 40

-REREKE 5%

- R 7-15%

- B5H 4 - 5%

- EREARS 54

HE / FHEYE  REREMNERAHE
SR REEEEENRAENZRET -
WHHE [ EHE A EEERSERAER -

(d) BEEE

BREEEEBANERRMFERBRREER
EHEMBHFREAMBRLE - BERK
HRAERM LT MEALEESAR
HERREETHMAETIHE  FENRE
BEREWERL EXLEREBEEET
ERMBER BREERRAEHRR
SHEREMREBRSTR (fiE2(e)) -

BEENBERMATIERFH (55)
DESEIALE YRR

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Land classified as held
under a finance lease

over the unexpired term of lease

- Buildings situated on
leasehold land

over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated

useful lives
- Other buildings 20 to 40 years
- Furniture and fittings 5 years

- Plant and machinery 7 to 15 years

- Motor vehicles 4 to 5years

- Computer systems 5 years

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the
date of disposal.

(d) Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences
and capitalised development costs of computer software
programs. Expenditure on development of computer software
programs is capitalised if the programs are technically feasible
and the POTF has sufficient resources and intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes direct labour
and cost of materials. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2(e)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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HWBEEES Post Office Trading Fund

2. FESHBE @) Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) BIEEEMRIE (e) Impairment of fixed assets

BE&EE (BEY%E - REREMRELE
E) MREEESERSBEREFTE - U
BEESHERBETR - WHBRBEFR
EREEENIREESNE A W@ SEE
HERRAEERSE2ERERAEIA
ik - EEMNTWEIZES QX FEHNRLER
FEEREMEFNRSE o

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to identify any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, an impairmentloss is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.

HEMEERSREE (f) Financial assets and financial liabilities

(i) MEaHER

LEESREYNGEENCIHARR
NAZKEREEREREEETID
B ERREBRIER FEHRNES
REMEREE -

TREERSHBERYRLFEIE
DNFEBERAERARENLLRBESH
BERELTHEEMERIBNRS
RS e
EEETHERRAHESRIANGHNH
F-AZRRREHETREEREHE
B-ZRBARHET S LARERK
HNEMEE  AEXWAAR -

EBHBFR 2015/2016

(i) Initial recognition

The POTF classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities
into different categories at inception, depending on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired or the liabilities
were incurred. The categories are: loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity securities and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially
at fair value, which normally equals to the transaction prices
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets or issue of the financial
liabilities.

The POTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on
the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are accounted for at settlement date.
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Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

HHBEEES Post Office Trading Fund

2. TEESTHE @
NHLMEERSBMER (@)
(i) 24&

B R ERIR
BERRERERRBEEERTUREEX
&8 BEEBMERIERE M
EESEEREEERSABRNIETES
MEE - EESESERES - B
BEALRY BRAS  HEESEE
R RITER - BERBITHEER o

BERK R WIR SRR R E R R R OR1R
RABENRBRERBE (WF) FItk (B
E2(f)(iv))

BERANRZEECHEENERAE
HEHERAE UARBsEEBEMEN
FMEBALZHNTGE - BEREFREE
ARERTAEARNBAXE (REAH
BEHE) AWEFTRERS  TEK
ZEMEER TR AEENIREFEME
AR E - EEESEFTEERAER
B SZEERTANRESHKRIAMN
A RERE  EFfERARNEER
BE AR EEEEERMNEREHN
FrERBEXNTFENESTNER - X
S RAR B EMRERITE -

SEFLV e
FEHRNISREEER T UEES
REBERETHHPA  MEEEESHEHR
BEOREIFEEZEPENETE
TREE  BHSERRERERER
BRI
SEMMNESRRAERFREREH
BAMEHIRRRERE (F) JiR (B
2(f)(iv)) -

MmN NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(i) Categorisation

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and which the POTF has no intention of trading.
This category includes debtors, amounts due from related
parties, interest receivable, placement with the Exchange
Fund, bank deposits and cash and bank balances.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (note

2(f)(iv)).

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the POTF estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees received or paid between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
which the POTF has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity, other than those that meet the definition of loans
and receivables.

Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less impairment losses, if any
(note 2(f)(iv)).
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HWBEEES Post Office Trading Fund

2. TESFTBER @) Significant accounting policies (continued)
HEMEERSHERE (@) (f) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(i) %8 (4E) (ii) Categorisation (continued)
HEteHEaE Other financial liabilities
Hiht e ESHEERAREIRBER Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using
BB HE o the effective interest method.

(i) EHEETERR

EREREERRRERENSIER
Emi AECREEEREEENR
BEXERBREBOHRERR 22/
EESWAHER -

EENERNES AR - BUESEH
B ZERAESWEHER

(iv) EREENRE

B PR WUR SN 5 2 H i 9 R 35 VIR
HES £ 3 B3RS A& R B F T
LREAAHAFTENRERE - 7
EERRE  REBRSRHEEMNK
HERRREBEMNERFRELSATER
HRARBEERENREZENESE
E2ERBERAER - WREBERAE
BOHMBRD  MEEH CEEERRRE
REBRENEHERE  AEZERER
RAEH B o

(iii) Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
where the financial asset together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or when it expires.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of loans and receivables and
held-to-maturity securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists, an
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate. If in a subsequent
period the amount of such impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

(9 FE (g) Stocks

FEAEFRENERNBRRfz= 50
AR AR AT E R FHEREIRE SR ° BAR
LREEHEEE - TERFEREE R
RERBRT AT EENRMAETIRHEERA
HYFE ©

EBHBFR 2015/2016

Stocks consist of postage stamps and aerogrammes held in the
stamp vaults at the Headquarters. They are stated at the lower of
costand net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

2. TESFTBER @)
h) B2RZEES

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

RERERRSVFERERMITER - IR
BEAMABESHEMIRE - ZEZREA
KE%E’EW%E%D%{%EE’JE% - BT RHE
EZBEABAA - WEFALBAKERR
H T #8 E:ﬂﬂﬁ °
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BREENTEKE  BRFERAFHEENLEN

AREMEIE - ENREHARERBRERER
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BB AR -

() EEEA
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Y TR HST 8K o

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances, and
other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity when placed or acquired.

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the POTF has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where itis not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(j) Employee benefits

The employees of the POTF comprise civil servants and contract
staff. Salaries, staff gratuities, and annual leave entitlements are
accrued and recognised as expenditure in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by the staff. For civil servants,
staff on-costs, including pensions and housing benefits provided
to the staff by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the Government), are charged as
expenditure in the year in which the associated services are
rendered.

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension
liabilities are discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-cost
charged by the Government. For other staff, contributions to
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income as incurred.
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HWBEEES Post Office Trading Fund

2. TESTHEER @)

(k) BERIEH
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Notional profits tax

0]

(i)

(iii)

The POTF has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue
Ordinance (Cap. 112). However, the Government requires the
POTF to pay to the General Revenue an amount in lieu of
profits tax (i.e. notional profits tax) calculated on the basis of
the provisions of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. Notional
profits tax expense for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the assets can be utilised, are
recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
thatitis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such deduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.
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2. TESFTBER @)
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MmN NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(I) Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue from postal services is recognised as the services are
provided. Allowance for a measured share of stamp income
for the amount of revenue from postage stamps sold in
respect of which postal service has not yet been provided is
made at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Interestincome is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.

(iii) Realised gains or losses on financial instruments are

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when

the financial instruments are derecognised.

(iv) Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

) Terminal dues and charges

Cross-border mail service requires cooperation between postal
operators in different countries or regions. The costs for delivery
of mail items incurred by the postal operator in the destination
country or region have to be recovered from the postal operator
in the originating country or region. Such costs are terminal
dues for letters, and charges for parcels and express mail service
(collectively referred to as terminal dues and charges). The rates
applicable to terminal dues are determined by the Universal
Postal Union every four years. The rates applicable to parcels can
be adjusted according to inflation whereas those applicable to
express mail service are determined by individual postal
operators annually. Nevertheless, a postal operator may enter
into bilateral agreements with another operator to determine
the rates of terminal dues and charges.

Terminal dues and charges recoverable from other postal
operators are included under Turnover - General mail services
(note 3). Terminal dues and charges payable to other postal
operators are included under Operating costs - General mail
operating expenses (note 4). They are recognised in the
accounts when the volume (i.e. weight and number of mail
items) of mail processed and the applicable rates of charge can
be measured / estimated reliably.
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HWBEEES Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Terminal dues and charges (continued)

When a new rate of charge for a period is being negotiated
between the POTF and another postal operator, the amount of
charges during that period will be determined based on an
estimated rate, which is equal to the rate in force for the preced-
ing period. If the new agreed rate of charge is different from the
estimated rate, an adjustment representing the difference
between the amount of charges calculated under the new
agreed rate and that under the estimated rate will be recognised
in the year the new rate is agreed.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars using the spot exchange rates at the transac-
tion dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into
Hong Kong dollars using the closing exchange rate at the end of
the reporting period. All foreign currency translation differences
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Related parties

The POTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government
established under the Trading Funds Ordinance. During the
year, the POTF has entered into transactions with various related
parties, including government bureaux and departments,
trading funds and financially autonomous bodies controlled or
significantly influenced by the Government, in the ordinary
course of its business.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period. There have been no changes to the account-
ing policies applied in the financial statements for the years
presented as a result of these developments.

The POTF has not applied any new HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period (note 22).
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B EEES Post Office Trading Fund
3. E R Turnover
2015
—RRENE RIS General mail services 4,709,574 5,174,726
FEIEA Miscellaneous revenue 169,022 169,168
4,878,596 5,343,894
4. BIERK Operating costs
2015
[ERN%N Staff costs 2,641,037 2,561,856
—REHSEMER General mail operating expenses 1,656,864 2,209,907
HeREEE Rental and management charges 203,421 218,853
TEREE Depreciation and amortisation 126,608 155,090
FRRITHE R Central administration overheads 24,076 17,736
MSHEEEA Marketing expenses 9,181 9,677
ETER Audit fees 2,203 2,029
4,663,390 5,175,148
5. E#bg A Other income
2015
RE AT IEUAFETIIRAY Interest income from financial assets not
SREENFIEWRA at fair value
BZERNES Held-to-maturity securities 20,727 20,154
INEEESTFER Placement with the Exchange Fund 111,646 68,280
RITIERK Bank deposits 5,313 17,584
IRITEEER R HAth Bank balances and others 206 226
137,892 106,244
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6. BEFEF Notional profits tax
(a) REmWETRATBRN BE=FEH (a) The notional profits tax charged to the statement of comprehensive

o income is arrived at as follows:

2015
PN :E TR Current tax
NEEREFEBIHESE Provision for notional profits tax 56,467 40,859

for the year
IERERIRR Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of
TR ERNEERED temporary differences 3,945 8,897
BEFEH Notional profits tax 60,412 49,756
(b) BB HEETHRFIEAR RS (b) The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

HUEIRINT - applicable tax rates is as follows:

2015
EEAMESHAEF Profit before notional profits tax 353,098 274,990
REBANEFZE165% (2015: 16.5%) Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate

STERBIE of 16.5% (2015 : 16.5%) 58,261 45,373
—IREFRIBEER One-off tax reduction (20) (20)
FHBEFESE Tax effect of non-deductible 3,850 8,665
expenses
FEFERRLUR A IR TE S 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (1,679) (4,262)
BEFESTH Notional tax expense 60,412 49,756
7. Bl EEELH=E Rate of return on fixed assets

EEEELREELUAZHEIWE (REIERIE  The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive
WAMFETH) BRUBEEETY SERN income (excluding interest income and interest expenses) divided by
EHESL BErEEEGEYE  LERE average net fixed assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assets

. include property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The POTF
I o BT BT = FEHRA )
MARPEE - BMRARAREE  RHEE is expected to meet a target rate of return on fixed assets of 5.9% (2015:

ELANUEANSFEAEAERARERER 5.9%) per year as determined by the Financial Secretary.
5.9% (2015:5.9%) -

EBHBFR 2015/2016



M| ERMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 7 FZ,‘

(BRAFRIGERASN - SRRLUBB T LB

Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

B BLEES Post Office Trading Fund

8. W% - JENEEHM Property, plant and equipment
TihRiEF FEAREE RERER HE SRS

Land and Furniture Plant and Motor Computer

buildings and fittings  machinery vehicles systems
2% Cost
201454818  At1April 2014 3,240,190 559,833 742,634 70,249 107,649 4,720,555
BB /B Additions / Transfers 256,917 34,123 26,456 11224 19,541 348,261
HE /5 Disposals (228,200) (69,827) (192,397) (3,835) (941)  (495,200)
7201553H31H At31March2015 3,268,907 524,129 576,693 77,638 126249 4573616
201554818  At1April 2015 3,268,907 524,129 576,693 77,638 126,249 4,573,616
BB /B Additions / Transfers - 28,259 13,627 5,509 31,225 78,620
HE /5EE Disposals - (64,105) (16,666) (9,934) (29,408) (120,113)
720165E3H31H At 31 March 2016 3,268,907 488,283 573,654 73,213 128,066 4,532,123
FIHTE Accumulated depreciation
201454818  At1April2014 896,745 483,111 582,288 52,470 81072 2,095,686
FREA Charge for the year 75,735 31432 29,069 8,108 1,124 145,468
HE /5EEEEE  Written back on disposal (57,811) (64,535) (192,170) (3,835) (941)  (319,292)
M201553H31H At31March2015 914,669 450,008 419,187 56,743 81,255 1,921,862
201554818 At1April 2015 914,669 450,008 419,187 56,743 81,255 1,921,862
FREA Charge for the year 42,329 27,925 33,760 7,046 6,211 117,271
HE /5ESEEIE  Written back on disposal - (62,748) (14,593) (9,839) (29,398)  (116,578)
720165E3H31H At 31 March 2016 956,998 415,185 438,354 53,950 58,068 1,922,555
IR SHE Net book value
20165E3H31H 31 March 2016 2,311,909 73,098 135,300 19,263 69,998 2,609,568
2015%3H31H  31March2015 2,354,238 74121 157,506 20,895 44994 2651754
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9 BIEEE Intangible assets )
S B IS ER S5 %N
Computer software licences and
system development costs
2015
3% Cost
F4) At beginning of year 366,940 360,864
BB [ Additions / Transfers 23,045 16,193
HE /5 Disposals (69,731) (10,117)
FHR Atend of year 320,254 366,940
E=Sqgt sl Accumulated amortisation
F1) At beginning of year 324,353 324,848
FRNEA Charge for the year 9,337 9,622
HE /EeEEE Written back on disposal (68,117) (10,117)
FH Atend of year 265,573 324,353
IREFE Net book value
FH Atend of year 54,681 42,587
10. B2 Eim 5 Held-to-maturity securities
2015
BT LB AT Debt securities at amortised cost:
-REBLEW - Listed in Hong Kong 201,649 202,119
-3kEm - Unlisted 582,279 584,058
783,928 786,177
FIERFE] : Remaining maturity:
TEZR—F Within one year 582,279 319,094
—FLE Over one year 201,649 467,083
783,928 786,177
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Tl

12.

INEE TR

NEESEFREHBH23.502B8 71 (2015 :
22.277B#E ) - EF21.70fE% T (2015 :
21. 7088 t) REEBFH » 1.80288

(2015 : 0.577EE ) Al AREHERAE
AREBEKRIERNFE - ZERBH AT (H
TR HREET) » BT EEIREURBF ©

MNEESERANEREF1ABENEERR
FTE o ZERRESREHEGBEASFNTY
FERELQR  =FHPNMEELES (B
2016F1B1BRA=FHBFES) £ L—@
FENTHFEERTZ  MEDERSE TR
0% ° 2016 FBEEERAFTF3.3% 2015
FHEF55% °

IESERL TR
EHRR ARG EEBROEEANR
BORRERNLBUT :

Placement with the Exchange Fund

The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted to
HK$2,350.2 million (2015: HK$2,227.7 million), being the principal sums
of HK$2,170 million (2015: HK$2,170 million) plus interest paid but not
yet withdrawn at the end of the reporting period of HK$180.2 million
(2015: HK$57.7 million). The term of the placements are six years from
the date of placement, during which the amount of principal sums
cannot be withdrawn.

Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined every
January. The rate is the average annual investment return of the
Exchange Fund’s Investment Portfolio for the past six years or the
average annual yield of three-year Exchange Fund Notes (three-year
Government Bonds with effect from 1 January 2016) for the previous
year subject to a minimum of zero percent, whichever is the higher. The
interest rate has been fixed at 3.3% per annum for the year 2016 and at
5.5% per annum for the year 2015.

Deferred tax

Major components of deferred tax recognised in the statement of
financial position and the movements during the year are as follows:

201454 B 1 B &6k

REmEREROE / (EE)
201553 B31 B &5eh
201554 B 1 B 56

REERERNR
201653 A31 B 456k

BEBETER
BEETERBIAE
Depreciation
allowances Hth
inexcessof EHFMHEER
the related Other
depreciationand  temporary  #&&t
amortisation  differences  Total
Balance at 1 April 2014 28,080 (1,259) 26,821
Charged / (Credited) to
statement of
comprehensive income 8,902 (5) 8,897
Balance at 31 March 2015 36,982 (1,264) 35718
Balance at 1 April 2015 36,982 (1,264) 35,718
Charged to statement of
comprehensive income 3,713 232 3,945
Balance at 31 March 2016 40,695 (1,032) 39,663
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HWBEEES Post Office Trading Fund

13. EEEF B ME Provision for employee benefits

WA ZREPERBFMAIZEM  This represents the estimated liability for employees’annual leave and obligations
HWIREAFEEFBREAYESY  oncontract-end gratuities payable to contract staff for services rendered up to the

RIS IEETaE (REME() end of the reporting period (also see note 2(j)).

14. EEBEHESER Trading fund capital
HABFHEEESHWIRE - This represents the Government’s investment in the POTF.
15. BEHFE Development reserve
2015
FUIRFHRER Balance at beginning and end of year 243,664 243,664

201653 A31 BB EAREIENES + The balance at 31 March 2016 is uncommitted and is earmarked for future

T FEHS RETE B © development.
16. IRE B X Retained earnings

FHsEER Balance at beginning of year 1,908,571 1,683,337
FEHEZE N Total comprehensive income for the year 292,686 225,234
EX T EEZE2015F3831H 1 Dividend paid in respect of the year

FEHRE ended 31 March 2015 (112,617) -
EX I EEZE2014F3831H 1 Dividend paid in respect of the year

FENRE ended 31 March 2014 (58,622) -
FHREEER Balance at end of year 2,030,018 1,908,571

EBHBFR 2015/2016
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17.

18.

RERE

EHZE2016F3A3MBLEFE  REFEL
2HBSENEYEEERERRRBRXZEN
FEEETEES HMN50%(2015 : 50%) B
ERELEE  §EESH1.463EBIRE
(2015 : 1.126f=5#7T) °

HeRhEERE

Proposed dividend

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the POTF proposed a dividend of
HK$146.3 million (2015: HK$112.6 million), based on the total
comprehensive income for the year and the target dividend payout
ratio of 50% (2015: 50%) stated in the annual business plan approved by
the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury.

Cash and cash equivalents

2015

RERRITHEER

RITIFER

o REHRA=EANUL
HYERITE

REkZERRE

Cash and bank balances 147,953 151,743
Bank deposits 520,345 702,442
668,298 854,185

Less: Bank deposits with original
maturity beyond three months - (625)
Cash and cash equivalents 668,298 853,560

18.

BHRIE A TR S

BRTHEAMBERRABIBENRZ I F
REEEBEATHMEMEEZRZBMUT ¢

(a) EEESRUTHEATHRBERE—
REBRHE R BHABBNRERE -
REELERBIHRABERS2.488(88 7T

(2015 : 2.310fE#E T) ;

(b) BEATRUTFEEESNRBEEEE
FEARTS - EDRIARTS - IR - BFE
EREE RO AHEE  PRITER
EETIRTE - BLRBMNZ LB H2.214
fEi8 T (2015 : 2.022f8/8 7T)

Related party transactions

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the
other material related party transactions for the year are summarised as
follows:

(a) services provided to related parties included general postal services
and agency services, which are compatible with postal related
services. The total revenue derived from these services amounted to
HK$248.8 million (2015: HK$231.0 million);

(b) services received from related parties included computer services,
printing services, training services, building management and
maintenance, rental of accommodation, central administration and
auditing services. The total cost incurred on these services
amounted to HK$221.4 million (2015: HK$202.2 million);

HONGKONG POST ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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10. EHEEA LTRSS @) Related party transactions (continued)
(CMEHESHEEATEABEERE  &4F (0 acquisition of fixed assets from related parties included fitting out
SHHBHEBIE BSLHRBES projects of post offices, acquisition of land and buildings, plant and

machinery, computer systems and motor vehicles. The total cost of

2 =114 \,%ﬁ 5 \—g%*
RERME  BRFAREE - BEAE these assets amounted to HKS$ 14.9million (2015: HK$48.9 million);

BIRRZA 4858 51,4908 8 T (2015 : 4,890

B88xT) |
(EEESHSHAENRDRMEBREFHE  (d) the POTF received government grants relating to the provision of
REEESHTEZ - B BFE electronic services through a contractor. During the year,

government grants of HK$11.2million (2015: HK$16.9 million) were
deducted from the related expenses incurred by the POTF. As at 31
March 2016, the balance of government grants carried forward to

1,12088 7t (2015: 1,690887T) B
EEESHERBAXI PR - #E2016

F3AA > BEAT —EFENIBRATR the next year amounted to HK$16.9 million (2015: HK$16.1 million);
FREEERIEN,69088 T (2015: 1,61088 and
7T) 5 UK

(e)EEESAMOBUSHEANYES(IEE (o) the POTF is required to pay notional market rental on premises
TEES MENEENEEmEHRSR leased from the Government. The notional market rental for the
2006F4 BB EHTEE o RPBFED Airport Post Office has been waived by the Government since April

2006. Subject to annual approval by the Government, the notional
market rental for Tsim Sha Tsui Post Office has been waived since

WERTEESH2009/10FELESH

% SEABBERNEEDEESAE 2009-10 and the notional market rentals for another six post offices
201112 ERESHE - EEBFALK have been waived since 2011-12. For the year ended 31 March 2016,
FERL - BE2016F3A31HLNFE - the notional market rentals waived for these eight leased premises
ZN\FEEYES L EEBHREI, 2085 amounted to HK$32.9 million (2015: HK$30.3 million).

THIEETEES(2015 : 3,030E87T) °

o) g8 EIRE 2p=3 e 175 HY 1 ervices rendered to or received from related parties which were also
MEE AT RS MEIEA LR AR Servi dered ived f lated parties which |

NE kG ATEIRME » = iE N2 A available to the public were charged at the rates payable by the genera
MEREAREM  KESXRBABRFEAM ilable to the publi harged at th ble by th I
RUEE  NZZRERISHTIEEAL - public. Services which were available only to related parties were

St R 5 harged on a full cost recovery basis. Fixed assets supplied by related
Bl - MBIE ALY C
g%’éjzgiiﬁiﬁfﬁjﬁ" MBI AL BLEA parties were charged at full cost.

EEHE o AR °

HZE2016F3H31HEREE A T EBENEE:  Balances with related parties as at 31 March 2016 are set out in the
DS BFE AR o statement of financial position.
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20. 7&iE Commitments
(a) BAENE (a) Capital commitments
1£20165F3H31H » €EE S At 31 March 2016, the POTF had capital commitments, so far as not
AREEMBHRERAELRED provided for in the financial statements, as follows:
BEAEEMNT ¢
2015
EERELN Authorised and contracted for 49,965 69,776
Authorised but not yet
B EICES ) contracted for 83,418 140,542
133,383 210,318
(b) EEFHERE (b) Operating lease commitments
1£20165F3H31H » TEEEUH At 31 March 2016, the total future minimum lease payments under
HEEMELEHENRER non-cancellable operating leases for leased properties were
REEBREENT : payable as follows:
2015
—FLR Not later than one year 112,337 116,614
Later than one year but not later
—FRETZREF than five years 254,864 262,004
A% Later than five years 1,223,969 1,198,029
1,591,170 1,576,647
21. IR R E TR Financial risk management
(a) BEHXE (a) Investment policy
BIRMEIIMIKMARER  CEBEESEIRS To provide an ancillary source of income, surplus cash is invested in
BHBENESRTENIREES - BEE a portfolio of financial instruments. The portfolio includes
é@}ﬁ;%;zé,ﬁﬂiﬁﬂ’ﬂ%% . 9#@%@@%\& held-to-maturity securities, placement with the Exchange Fund and

bank deposits. It is the POTF’s policy that all investments in financial
instruments should be principal-protected.

RITER - BEESHEREERMIA
HIREEBRARE -

HONGKONG POST ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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BEEREE @) Financial risk management (continued)
(b) &b (b) Currency risk
E¥mERiEeR I ENAFESRKES Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
BEEEEXRSITMEINER - L8 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in currency
HeBERENSER  LEBEWE exchange rates. The POTF monitors its foreign currency exposure
=N = 3 "'"'" L

and may consider to enter into foreign exchange contracts when
circumstances arise to protect it from the impact of currency

MERBRIUNMNESH  MRELEERES

HEERXBRRIEWREE - fluctuation during the normal course of business.
FR - EEESHEZAWRRRAERNE During the year, the POTF recognised a net exchange loss of HK$14.7
HISBEEA1 47088 T (2015 1 BEH million (2015:a net exchange gain of HK$32.8 million) in the
I3 TEEE3, 280858 7T) ° statement of comprehensive income.
TRASLERESHNIREHLE R H NS The table below summarises the POTF’s foreign currency exposure
EBEE at the end of the reporting period:
2016 2015
BE afE BE aft
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
=TT US dollar 282,703 16,507 326,286 21,266
ARHE Renminbi 156,015 7 157,742 5
&t Euro 10,451 2,599 3,468 2421
SRR R Special Drawing Rights 72,204 287,925 65,933 432,131
Hobyngg Other foreign currencies 18,723 401 19,973 523
540,096 307,439 573,402 456,346
SHEIZAT—ETBREENETHL The management considers a 0.5% increase / decrease in the
BT ERESIEE R T o g1 / ,Jaj@d\ exchange rate of the US dollar against the Hong Kong dollar in the
0.5% o IR | HAOEHRE L coming financial year to be reasonably possible. Had such an

increase / decrease occurred at the end of the reporting period, the
total comprehensive income for the year would have been increased /

BE4E  AFENRZHWEEE i'ﬁ'le]/

BDP1108# T (2015 : 13087BT) © decreased by HKS$1.1million (2015: HK$1.3 million).

SHEHENRIAAET —EFBREENISBIR The management also considers a 5% increase / decrease in the
HRERETUINEE N B TERE exchange rates of Special Drawing Rights and foreign currencies
SEERTAEEM / FA 5% o B other than US dollar against the Hong Kong dollar in the coming

financial year to be reasonably possible. Had such an increase /
decrease occurred at the end of the reporting period, the total
comprehensive income for the year would have been decreased /

B RO EREMERBBELE  AF
ENRAzEREESRD /1BiN1408%8

Jt(2015: 78088 TT) ° increased by HK$1.4 million (2015: HK$7.8 million).
BRELISBESNRE  EREEZRY The above sensitivity analyses have been prepared assuming that
SHOEANERESHERAEAENS the change in exchange rates had been applied to the financial
BWTHE o instruments in existence at the end of the reporting period.
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Financial risk management (continued)

CIEERERE @
(c) RZ=E e

(c) Interest rate risk

FZE eI RS H RSB 5| BUEERN
A& © MIEARAE—SHHBAPERE
Hﬁﬁiﬁﬁmu;ﬂ%@@ e

AFEFNZEAREERTANATFEER
WENREBMKBHNER - AREER
ENRITERARFEZHMROEFREEF
RAENE  BEMBSANRLA  BLEE
MAFEES T - A - BRELEE
ERMERAESR  mBNREEH TS
FEHRAENEEESNEFR @4 -

REngfEakiEERTANARRES
REEEM S ESEMEENER - &
EESHYMNESRENZRAR  2RE
IRITEEMS RIS ENRIRGE - BEE
ART—EMRFENT SN RESHERS
T RATBEIZ AN / A 50EE B - a0BEIE
/LR ERERBBEE - FRAF

BRARAE éﬁﬂ&(m%ﬁ%bﬂ | BAPB0E
JT (2015 : 50 EET) °

d) FERkE

FERREERIAN-—FTHEEER
REBTEEMSIBE - HEZUHKE
KEV R o

LEESHARERRBERAGOFEELE
REFNBEFRUSRAERS SENBHK
AR#E - BHERIX 5 HFNEERBEELL
FEETUSAR - SEHEEABSRE

ERZXZHFONRRAREERRE
—REEI ARSI

BEREKEERR  IEERER
HEQE‘;%%K%E{T W

11977

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in
market interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Since all of the POTF's bank deposits and held-to-maturity
securities bear interest at fixed rates, their fair values will fall when
market interest rates increase. However, as they are all stated at
amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not affect their
carrying amounts and the POTF's profit and reserves.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The POTF is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
because its bank balances bear interest at rates determined by
reference to market interest rates. The management considers a 50
basis points increase / decrease in market interest rates in the
coming financial year to be reasonably possible. Had such an
increase / decrease occurred at the end of the reporting period, the
interest income and the total comprehensive income for the year
would have been increased / decreased by HKS$0.5 million (2015:
HK$0.5 million).

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail
to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a
financial loss.

The POTF has policies in place to ensure that wholesale postal
services are provided to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Credit exposure to an individual counterparty is restricted
by credit limits. The counterparty’s payment profile and credit
exposure are continuously monitored by respective management.
Postal services to retail customers are substantially settled in cash.

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed
banks in Hong Kong.
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21. I EREIRE @) Financial risk management (continued)

(d) EERRK (&) (d) Credit risk (continued)

SIEEEFRNEERRBRME

EREHERE  RBFEHRNEZNE
BEREHSN (RFRgERE 2
LN EBIEENTRPNEEEASE)
M

For the placement with the Exchange Fund, the credit risk is considered
to be low.

At the end of the reporting period, the credit quality of investments
in held-to-maturity securities, analysed by the lower of ratings
designated by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s or Fitch's, was as follows:

2015
REEFRIIEHNZZERNES Held-to-maturity securities
by credit rating
Aal £ Aa3/AA+ £ AA- Aalto Aa3/AA+to AA- 416,649 202,119
A1 E A3/A+ EA- A1 to A3/ A+to A- 367,279 534,094
Baal & Baa3/BAA+ & BAA- Baa1 to Baa3 / BAA+ to BAA- - 49,964
783,928 786,177

EEESRKASREERAAENRSE
BEEBAAS R RE AR IREE

(e) REBVE T /E b2

RBECERERBERTHEEMAE
R E RSB 2 R EH kR -

EERRDASARSTE  EEELES
B FEORLBERERLTDES -
BRAUEHFAHBABEREANES
BR o

Hib &g m ke

HEESANEF1ABEENIERESE
MEZE (F11) WEEmAME SR
B2 o A2016F3 8310 » 20155
2016F B RIE M / WA 50EE B M E AL
BETENERT G FERIRE
s / R4 980 B T (2015 : 930
BExT) o

EBHBFR 2015/2016

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the POTF
is equal to their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

(e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The POTF manages liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of cash
required and monitoring its working capital to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements could be met.

(f) Other financial risk

The POTF is exposed to financial risk arising from change in the interest

rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund which is determined
every January (note 11). It was estimated that, as at 31 March 2016, a 50
basis point increase / decrease in the interest rates for 2015 and 2016,
with all other variables held constant, would increase / decrease the
profit for the year and reserves by HK$9.8 million (2015: HK$9.3 million).
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22.

CEM{EREZE20165 38 31
Eutﬁr*rﬁfki MEVIERT ~ #7
ZRRZENIETE

BEEXAPBHRRBEHEZA - BBEFHMQ
ECEMSEER HEARBRE - H
BERBZE2016F3A31H LS FERRK
R/ RORBRAIERYBHRERFRANE

R HEARRE REERESFRANZ
F155 - MEARZEEL
FUAT BEAsL
ZEBAEE
B R
BRBITSR AR - 20181818
remTal
ERBISREERIE 15, - 20181818
[REEFEHZEA]
EIBRSREERIE 6% - 20191818
Fiid

LEESERHZEBR]  HEARREEE
RERANEEREEENEEETHME - B
ZRAIR/L  EERETHEERABRAZE
B MEARZBTIAJRESHEELS
NP BRRBREATE -

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
which have not been early adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the POTF:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 16, Leases

1 January 2018

1 January 2019

The POTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial adoption. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the financial statements.
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